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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

“The AFRC will remain steadfast in
upholding audit quality and quality
of financial reporting. We are also
determined, through our regulatory efforts,
to create positive ripple effects for the
accounting profession and the wider
public. This, in turn, will solidify Hong
Kong’s position as a vibrant and resilient
international financial centre.”
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It is my pleasure to present to you this Annual Report for the year ended
31 March 2023, the first since the AFRC was transformed to become the
independent regulator of the accounting profession.

Hong Kong'’s continued success as one of the world’s leading international
financial centres is built on its strong fundamentals. Among these, the robust
and transparent financial regulatory system is the bedrock for the effective
functioning of the capital markets and the source of public confidence. The
AFRC plays a pivotal role within this system by upholding audit quality and
the quality of financial reporting.

In recent months, the global financial markets have been marred by critical
incidents such as bank failures and audit deficiencies. The professional quality
of auditors and the ensuing quality of their audits were put into the limelight
and have, disappointingly, affected market stability and public confidence.
Against this background, financial regulators, being the defender of the law,
need to act with determination and do whatever it takes to fortify market
confidence. It is this strong sense of mission that has propelled the AFRC to
stride ahead to maintain the robustness of the financial market.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
I 2815 2020-235 %

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP Chairman
EAMEL  REFEE  KFHL FEF

KRS EASME2EEHZ2023F3A31HIEFE
NFER WASHBE(LASHREBTEESK
BENEMDER -

BRAREREE —HEORBRERP L - EFEK
DREERGEOER L - Kb - 122 - EHN
TREEBRREAMSHMETNEARAR
ELRR - @ RBBERFET W FERD
=R APRERRAS

IAE A K RIS RS R IRTT R MET
REBREMMEIEITE - RBEINEEXE XM
BNEEz MARNEAEREER TRARARL
R TRETHSRENAREL  BES
AKRE - BERBRT  ERZEREFENTRE
EHE - FERETE > 2R UARETS
B0 EREEBRANNEGE  HBTEMEA
SRS MES MAT -



Scaling up for the Further Reform

In the past year, we have smoothly implemented the Further Reform of the
accounting profession, which extends our regulatory power to the auditors
of all entities in Hong Kong and gives us the power to regulate all accounting
professionals. We have also expanded our registration and licensing functions
to cover all practising accountants and their firms and companies and
broadened the scope of our oversight over the performance of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) to cover all of its
regulatory functions for the accounting profession.

To effectively discharge our wider responsibilities, we have begun to
progressively scale up our team with the required competence and
expertise. With a focus on effective recruitment and a well-structured, merit-
based Training, Appraisal and Promotion policy in place, we have been
able to attract and retain talent in the face of the industry-wide brain drain
phenomenon. The extensive experience and diverse backgrounds of our
staff have given us a strong position and the ability to discharge our new
roles without the need of going through a steep learning curve. Driven by
a meaningful purpose, our staff strive to adopt ‘One Team, One Culture’
to safeguard the public interest and shape a healthy and sustainable
environment for the development of the profession.

Achieving synergy and enhancing efficiency

We continued to prioritise our key objectives and streamline our procedures
to achieve the further improved synergy and efficiency. Taking a proactive,
risk-based regulatory approach, we focused our resources on issues
and cases that entail significant public interest. We stay vigilant to market
intelligence and issues of concern related to audit quality and the quality of
financial reporting. We take swift and appropriate actions through the issuance
of Open Letters and Guidelines to address them or urge the profession to
take actions when potential risks associated with audit quality are identified.
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Reinforcing strategic collaborations

Reinforcing our strategic collaborations with local and Mainland regulators
is high on the AFRC’s agenda. To strengthen cooperation in the context of
our expanded roles, we signed the Memorandum of Understanding with the
Hong Kong Police Force and renewed the Statement of Protocol with the
HKICPA. We also engaged in regular liaisons, capacity building and case
referrals with other financial regulators and law enforcement agencies to
combat market misconduct and ensure that the financial market operates in
an orderly manner.

Amidst the increased connectivity of the Mainland financial markets
with Hong Kong, the AFRC has continued exploring further cooperation
opportunities with the PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MoF). Building on the first
stage of successfully obtaining audit working papers located in the Mainland
for our investigation purpose, we have been engaging in dialogues with
MoF to discuss cross-border regulatory issues and finetune the relevant
collaboration mechanisms. We also render all the necessary assistance within
our regulatory remit to foster international cross-border collaboration on audit
regulation.

Engaging with stakeholders

We maintain close and timely communication with stakeholders and the
public to help them understand our regulatory principles, progress and
expectations through a variety of channels including briefings, webinars,
publications of regulatory reports and issuance of open letters. All these are
focused and themed activities with multiple purposes — information sharing,
directional guidance, thought leadership and calls for action. This way, the
AFRC can caution the market to pay attention to emerging risk issues and
drive continuous improvements in market practice, audit quality and financial
reporting.

Rebranding with a new identity

The AFRC is a growing and relatively young regulator. Therefore, we have
put considerable effort into raising public awareness of our new identity and
expanded roles. After a 6-month robust and creative rebranding exercise,
we staged the AFRC Launch Ceremony on 29 September 2022 to launch
our new logo and new corporate video. We also revamped our website with
enhanced features for easy access to information and for reporting potential
audit irregularities and misconduct.
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Driving changes and raising standards

Under the visionary Board leadership and the well-orchestrated Management
efforts, we have been able to deliver effective regulatory outcomes — driving
changes, raising professional standards and nurturing a healthy competitive
environment for the profession to thrive.

Expressing heartfelt gratitude

For all these accomplishments, | express my heartfelt gratitude to my fellow
Board Members and our colleagues who work with passion and devotion in
the spirit of ‘One Team One Culture’. Special thanks go to the Government
which has been rendering the staunchest of support to the AFRC all these
years. My statement would be incomplete without my sincere thanks to the
Advisory Committee, the Financial Reporting Review Panel, the Process
Review Panel, our Honorary Advisers and the Sustainability and Climate
Action Task Force. Their wise counsel, valuable insights and unfailing support
have injected into the AFRC team the necessary nutrients and energy to fulffill
our mission.

Creating positive ripple effects

In a turbulent economic environment, intensified monitoring and stringent
regulation are essential for the stability and effective functioning of the financial
system. The AFRC will remain steadfast in upholding audit quality and the
quality of financial reporting. We are also determined, through our regulatory
efforts, to create positive ripple effects for the accounting profession and the
wider public. This, in turn, will solidify Hong Kong’s position as a vibrant and
resilient international financial centre.
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“We will continue to build our talent
pool, monitor market developments,
enforce the requirements of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance (AFRCO) and
promote good practices to uphold
the quality of audits and financial
reporting.”

[RFSEEBEIATE EEHHH
& BT (St RV ERFIRG]) BIEE

Amidst the global challenges in 2022-23, the AFRC continued to forge ahead
to promote audit quality and uphold the quality of financial reporting, which is
the cornerstone of public confidence in the capital markets of Hong Kong.

Implementing the Further Reform

In the first half of the year, we focused our efforts on ensuring the successful
implementation of the Further Reform. We developed strategies and policies
that would enable us to integrate our expanded functions progressively while
completing the implementation of our Disciplinary powers in the 2019 reform.
We conducted a comprehensive stakeholder engagement exercise in relation
to the Further Reform and a Consultation on our Disciplinary powers. From
the onset of the Further Reform till the commencement of the new regulatory
regime, we have organised 50 stakeholder engagement activities in the form
of briefings, webinars and meetings. Over 6,000 participants participated
in these activities, which enabled us to explain our regulatory principles and
approach and address potential concerns. As a result, we garnered wide
support for the new regime, which commenced on 1 October 2022. As the
regulator of the accounting profession in Hong Kong, all practice units (i.e.,
practising Certified Public Accountants (CPAs), firms of practising CPAs and
corporate practices) now fall within our remit for registration and licensing,
inspection, investigation and discipline; and all CPAs fall within our remit for
investigation and discipline.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

To cater for the further phasing in of the 2019 PIE auditor regime and the
initial operational needs of our expanded functions, we have scaled up
our workforce respectively by 30 and 26 headcounts to increase our total
headcount from 59 to 115. This includes 90 (78%) professionals with diverse
accounting, auditing, regulatory and legal experience. With their professional
knowledge and a passion to serve the public interest, our Management team
and staff effectively executed the strategies set by the Board to deliver our
strategic regulatory outcomes.

Raising the quality of professional accountants

We are committed to constantly raising the level of quality of professional
accountants. We do this through all of our regulatory activities, starting with
our registration and licensing functions. We have adopted a robust registration
process for practice units, in which all applications are vetted rigorously. The
stringent statutory requirements on registration and licensing and our ability
to set conditions help foster a culture of pursuing quality and enhancing
competence in the profession, thereby giving assurance on the quality of the
registered accountants. By developing clear application guidelines and a user-
friendly online application system, we have implemented the first registration
and renewal cycle smoothly.

Our oversight of the specified functions by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) has also been expanded under the Further
Reform. We now oversee all regulatory functions of the HKICPA relating to the
registration, qualification, training and continuing professional development
of CPAs and the setting of professional standards. For operational clarity
and transparency, we signed a Revised Statement of Protocol on Oversight
Arrangement with the HKICPA (SOP). In accordance with the SOP, we
conducted on-site assessments, observed regulatory committee meetings
and engaged in regular dialogues with the HKICPA. We communicated our
observations and recommendations to the HKICPA in our oversight report
and monitored closely the follow-up actions taken. We appreciate that our
recommendations, which aim to raise the standards of the Institute and the
profession, have been followed up progressively.

Fostering a culture of audit quality

Audit quality underpins public confidence in the quality and reliability of
financial statements of listed entities and other entities whose financial
stakeholders include the wider public. To protect the public interest, we
proactively inspect the quality management systems and audits of practice
units that audit listed entities (PIE auditors) and, progressively under the
Further Reform, other practice units that perform audits of other entities.
In our first 3-year inspection cycle for PIE auditors, which we completed
this year, we adopted a robust, risk-based approach to our inspections.
We not only identified deficiencies in audit engagements and systems of
quality management but also assigned audit quality ratings to individual
engagements and required and monitored the implementation of remediation
plans to address our findings. We also promoted proactive improvement
by transparent reporting of our findings in our interim and annual inspection

ITHARRE

BIRE2019F QA RFR Z B BAGIE R LB
BEREAGNYVBEERE  RMBETERAR
7 RIIE INB0ME [ 261E - #EEE T AHHS9AEXR
Z115A » HPOOA (78%) REALE @ - &8
B BEEMEEERNEEALT  cBMNEEE
BB B B ZEANHLRERBRF M
BT T EE R EAEE - ABHRERME
HIESE AR ©

EEEXSIMEER
BVEBIE N M R B EREE RS -
HORABXREHMNER - ROKA T ER
EERIR - TEMEEBEUN SR FRCBREE
B o BRIRAYIATE s AN bR SR B AT 5 DN AR A
BRES - BB EEERE KM E X
B 3L - W R e E AR B R HRE - @
B I E R RER B A HE S| MERNE BB LRE R
g RIPIERFR T £ —EEMAnERES -

E-IUERBRMYTESTIAE (D) EH
BENEBEREZ - RARAEZBEASEMTE
fiit ~ HERERE - FH - AMBEEREECRE
EEAGIEREEREE - RIRSEFBHIEME
RE > BMEAEHRET —NEF BB LHHH
2 o REHZEH  RFIRBRGHG - i
ZESERNRERSERYHFEENNETAK
EE - AMEEERSTAASHEETEEMEG
MEF - XEDNBI RS AR BETE - 1,
PIMRABIARED EERARGKIMERER
AT ERFETIE -

EEESTEREXL

FEMEEESIMEBNAMERBMBERERERR
AEENEL  AREEFNRNE - BRERQ
TNz - BB A ERBOREENL (RRF
o BB ME REEHIE MER - LRI
—HRERREMERETE R EELET
BR - A EERFERBHF - HARMAES - A
RAARTIE - B HATEER T EHAR
MEZEEFIERERKL - TREERIEE (FH T3
AHERAAR RHRERS  ERNEER - R
MEFHNEREREERRETPNERSRMANER
AR MEETRENE  EERERBERMANE
RERRAE LM ERZBERET REES
YEARME LT ERESTNEFTZESHY

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
EHF 2022-23F 5




CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
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reports, which give directional guidance to all PIE auditors based on our
findings and set out our expectations of directors and audit committees of
listed entities. Our findings and ratings provide an objective and measurable
benchmark for auditors to understand what needs to be done to improve
their audit quality to an acceptable level.

To help auditors to focus their efforts to address quality in their upcoming
audits and prepare well for our upcoming inspections, we also issued our
first “Audit Focus” publication before the 2022 year end busy season for PIE
audits.

When audit quality issues arise, we take swift actions to address them and
prevent them from escalating and harming the public interest. When we
observed an increasing trend of late PIE auditor resignations, we issued open
letters in October 2022 and again in January 2023 to remind PIE auditors
and Audit Committees of our expectations of outgoing and incoming auditors
and audit committee members to ensure the necessary high-quality financial
reporting and audits in addressing difficult audit issues and to meet their
responsibilities for providing transparent information to the capital markets.

Our inspection initiatives have helped translate auditors’ awareness of the
importance of audit quality into real actions to improve audit quality and foster
a culture of audit quality improvement in the long run.

Combatting misconduct and non-compliance

We deter and combat audit misconduct and accounting non-compliance
through our investigation, discipline and enquiry functions. The Further Reform
has expanded our regulatory remit to cover professional persons(practice
units and CPAs), in addition to PIE auditors and their registered responsible
persons.

Reports from the public, whistleblowers and other regulators are all important
external sources of complaints that may warrant further regulatory actions in
addition to referrals from our inspection function. To encourage high quality
external reporting of potential misconduct and non-compliance, we have
published clear Complaint Guidelines with interactive public complaint and
whistleblower forms on our website. This digital report channel has been well-
received and widely used. Overall, the number of complaints we received
from these diverse sources has substantially increased, with 185 pursuable
complaints and referrals received (compared with 101 in FY 2021-22). This
has led to a significant increase in investigations and enquiries initiated (72
and 17 respectively compared with 32 and 14 respectively in FY 2021-22).

To deal with the increased caseload under time and resource constraints, we
set priorities for handling high-profile cases, i.e., cases with significant public
interest impact and older cases involving Mainland audit working papers we
received with the assistance of the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB)
of the MoF. We also further enhanced our investigation process to further
enhance the efficiency of our investigations.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Our Annual Investigation and Compliance Report makes transparent to all
our stakeholders the common issues we are addressing and our findings of
misconduct of PIE auditors and financial reporting non-compliances by listed
entities identified in our investigations, enquiries and Financial Statements
Review Programme. We also provided briefings for PIE auditors, and for
governance stakeholders through collaboration with their professional
bodies to explain our findings such that auditors, boards, audit committees
and directors of listed entities could avoid making or repeating the same
misconducts.

Our discipline function has also commenced handling six disciplinary cases
referred from the investigation function in accordance with our policies and
procedures developed and consulted on in the first half of the financial year.

Thought leadership

Regulation is more than hard and fast rules. We believe in the power of policy
research and thought leadership to influence the mindset and change the
behaviour of key stakeholders to uphold the quality of audits and financial
reporting and promote the healthy and sustainable development of the
accounting profession. To this end, we conducted thematic research that
shed light on key issues relating to audit quality and the effectiveness of
audit committees in the governance of financial reporting and the relationship
between listed entities and their auditors. This work included (i) a follow-
up survey of the progress made by firms in the implementation of the new
and revised quality management standards (QMSs); (ii) the Audit Fees
Paid by Listed Companies in Hong Kong 2020/2021 and (i) survey on the
Implementation of “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees — Selection,
Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors”. We promoted the findings in
these publications and research disseminating them to auditors and to other
key stakeholders through collaboration with other regulators and professional
bodies and held briefings to educate stakeholders on our findings and
recommendations on what needs to be done to improve the quality of audits
and financial reporting.

Strengthening collaboration with regulators and

enforcement agencies

We continued to strengthen our collaboration with regulators and
enforcement agencies in Hong Kong and the Mainland. We entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Commercial Crime Bureau of the
Hong Kong Police Force that enables full cooperation in the performance of
our respective duties in combating commercial crime and illicit activities in
relation to financial reporting and audit quality in Hong Kong.
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In respect of cross-border collaboration, we continued to engage in
constructive dialogues with the SEB and to prepare the ground for face to
face meetings in the Mainland once the travel restrictions arising from the
Covid pandemic were able to be lifted. Given the significance of Mainland
based audit work for Hong Kong listed entities, key matters of common
interest include collaboration in expediting the process of obtaining access
to audit working papers located in the Mainland for the performance of our
investigation and inspection functions.

Acknowledgments and thanks

The smooth transition to the new regulatory regime and our accomplishments
in performing our regulatory functions would not have been possible without
the passion and dedication of my staff and Management team. | would like to
convey my gratitude to them for their passion and determination to serve the
public interest and their unstinting hard work at the AFRC.

| would also like to convey my special thanks to the Chairman and my fellow
Board and Committee members at the AFRC for their wise counsel and
unfailing support during the year. Their visionary insights have helped us
take on the new challenges faced by the AFRC in broadening our regulatory
scope and horizon to discharge our roles as the independent regulator of the
accounting profession.

Looking forward

The new logo of the AFRC signifies the ripple effects we seek to create for
the profession and the entire community of Hong Kong. Bearing this in mind,
we will continue to build our talent pool, monitor market developments,
enforce the requirements of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance (AFRCO) and promote good practices to uphold the quality
of audits and financial reporting. With the staunch support of our staff,
Management, Committees and the Board, the AFRC has established a
strong foothold from which to continue advancing forward to protect the
public interest and safeguard Hong Kong’s important position as a leading
international financial centre.
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EAERERERSRT LM —ERMWA -

Mr Marek Grabowski
BhxE
Chief Executive Officer
TTIBAEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mission £

EEER

The mission of the AFRC is to shape a competitive environment that will nurture and promote the success of the profession.
This pivotal role not only enhances the quality of financial reporting but in turn reinforces our pursuit of promoting the healthy
development of the profession and Hong Kong’s position as a competitive international financial centre.

The AFRC fulffills its mission through:

Dialogue

Understanding

Collaboration

Law and Governance

Thought leadership

Values
The AFRC is committed to the following core values:

Independence and impartiality

The AFRC operates independently. We perform our functions fairly,
impartially and consistently, free from interference by the auditing
profession and listed entities, and from political pressure.

Accountability and transparency

The AFRC believes that as a regulator, we should be accountable
and transparent. We publish operational statistics, information on
investigations and enquiries, and other reports. This allows the
profession and the public to understand our operations and facilitates
judgment of our performance.

Integrity

Given the nature of our work, Board Members and staff must be of the
highest integrity. We adhere to high ethical standards in conducting our
activities.

Proficiency

We pledge to achieve our missions efficiently, effectively and
professionally.

B RIEEERNER o ié‘*?ﬁ%@?ﬁﬁiﬂ<E§ﬁE%§§k%%?+ﬂﬁi%B§$&E@ES?% - I BAEE

—HRICARES  HBHERNWAFEZERIEBEL/ARF NOBR SR O -

20 B BIAT ST ER AR

BRUEE
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BAMEE
BB A TR EME -
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RBRBIEFN - KARRFALERERUI
MITIE AXBAEFANLTERNOT
18 RRBUREN

BRERASBERE

EREERE AREAAERATER
B - RBEKEIERETEIE - HEMEAK
B NEMBRE  BARRERTBEARN
BERTIERR -

wE
HERT{EEE - EFRMARE THLR

EERAFROBE - RRRRITEBE RS
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B

~
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Strategic Focus

REEER

To solidify ‘One Team
One Culture’

EE [—EE - —31e

To uphold the quality
of audit and financial
reporting through a holistic
regulatory approach
BBEEMEESNHEE
M EREER

To spearhead positive
changes in attitudes
and behaviours of the
accounting profession
SIEE A ERUE
RBERITH

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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To enhance public
understanding of our regulatory
principles, policies and impacts
EARHRMNEERE
BRI ERIERE

regulators

hNSREAAHY - 3t 2 B B
HIBHRBESE

To promote the sustainable
development of the
accounting profession

RETHEXRNTIHEERR

To strengthen strategic
collaborations with local,
Mainland and international

b o
EE




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
MBS

Governance Structure

Z—\jJEI 1:%

Honoray Advisory Panel?

B2 E?

Advisory Committee’

BHESE'

Sustainability and
Climate Action
Task Force?

AEEERR

Financial Reporting
Review Panel'

MISEHRRAESE

Process Review Panel®

EFERZESE°

Committees?
ZEE?

ﬁ@tﬁi}]lﬂf #A2

Compensation Financial

Inspection

Committee
EREZEE

Investigation
and
Compliance
Committee

AEREE

Discipline
Committee
LERS
£E8E

Policy,
Registration
and Oversight
Committee

BER - B R
EEZST

Finance and
Corporate
Affairs
Committee

LU A 3
ERZESE

and Reporting
Nomination Review
Committee Committee*

R B B EE 3R
REEET BZESE

Footnotes:
Established under the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (AFRCO) 1.
and their members are appointed by Government Officials designated under the

1.

fi

RIBCEFT RMBERBDE) KL - ERKE B (EE
REIATSE R BIED) IENBA R B Ed -

AFRCO.

2. Established by and their members appointed by the Board. 2. HEERHEY  KEREEREMT -

3.  Established in 2008 by the Chief Executive of HKSAR and its members are appointed 3.  HEBFAIITREITEREE 7R2008F /M - HKEMR
by the CE to enhance the accountability of the AFRC. TBRREBZRT ' LIASHBHBEME

4. Established under the AFRCO and their members are appointed from amongst the 4.  1RIE(E 5 LEEERBIED) KL - Ak B {8 IFEHE R

members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel.

B R RE P IS -
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The Board
EER

Board Chairman
BEEREE

o Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
ERMEL  REARE ) KFMHL

Board Members
EERKE
Ms Rosita Lee

M+

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
OB KEBHE - KA

e Mr Stephen Lee
THBRE

9 Mr Stephen Hung
RREFRE

@ Mr Keith Lui
EEAEE

_—
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Accountmg and Financial __
Reporting cauncil Ry
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
MR ES

e Mr Marek Grabowski (CEO)
BhEE ITHRER)

e Dr Peter Wan, MH
FHEPHEEL  FEHE

e Ms Miranda Kwok, JP
WME Lt KFHE

@ Mr Eugene Fung, SC
BEELE » ERKER

m Mr Francis Siu
BEBRLE

Mr Edward Yuen
BrEEyE o4
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Profiles of Board Members

The Board

The Board is the highest governing body of the AFRC. Currently, the Board
comprises 12 members including the Chairman who is non-executive, 10
non-executive directors and 1 executive director.

Chairman =&

ESRRE[E

EER
EERETHRMBEERBORSE KM - A
ATE1 28 BARAY - BIEEE GEIT) - 1053
HITEFRIBHITES -

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
(from 2018-12-15; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BEAMELT  REFEE > KFHL
(FB2018-12-15i8 ; {EHA %72 2023-09-30/E /)

Dr Wong is the Chairman of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council.
He is an Executive Director and a Deputy Managing Director of COSCO
SHIPPING Ports Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of two
listed companies in Hong Kong.

He was a member of the Operations Review Committee of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (2017-2022), a Non-Executive Director of the
Securities and Futures Commission (2012-2018), the Chairman of the Investor
and Financial Education Council (2017-2018), the Chairman of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors (2009-2014), a member of Financial Reporting
Council (2015-2018), a convenor-cum-member of Financial Reporting Review
Panel (2013-2016), a member of Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform (2010-2016), a member of Main Board and GEM Listing Committees
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (2007-2013) and a member of
Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (2006-2008).

Dr Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Andrews
University in Michigan, USA, and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Members K&

BEETAEHRUBERDEE LT ESE
BOBRRPNTEEREERRLIE AW
BEE LM ARBILIFNTES -

MESRBAEREE SR BARNLEERER
(2017-2022) - EHLBAEEBEEZE SN

TEE(2012-2018) - REERIBMHELZE S
[#(2017-2018) ~ BBEFEE F[E(2009-2014) »
HISTER /DA 2 (2015-2018) ~ BIFERIGTZ B
B B%E ANKE((2013-2016) * R alANEHIE
ZEEZE(2010-2016) - BBBARSBMRA
AIERKAIZER ETHZ B2/ E(2007-2013) &
BEFM A ZEEZFLENEZBEZE 5 (2006-
2008) °

=HE LA EEZZIRMAndrews University T
BEBETENRESETASTEEEE LS

fiL °

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BOPEeL  KBBHE - ATV
(F32019-10-017%8 + fEHA K #°2023-09-30E )#)

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former President
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has chaired
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Financial Reporting
Standards Committee and has also been a member of the IFRS Advisory
Council.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
I 2815 2020-235 %

ML B ERYHEERT SMITNAR
A WARBEEGMAGH SR SQREEN
BHREEVNLZEEIR - TEEERMBREE
AERZEEMKE -



Mr Eugene Fung, SC
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

BEELE » ERAEE
(FB2018-12-01#8 ; {EHA##22023-09-30/E /")

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of
commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property litigation, professional
negligence, and company and insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the
High Court, the Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, the Chairman of the Process Review
Panel for the Insurance Authority and the Chairman of the Air Transport
Licensing Authority. He was a member of the Law Reform Commission of
Hong Kong from 2012 to 2018.

Mr Marek Grabowski
(from 2020-10-12; current appointment expires on 2023-10-11)

BEER—BARAREERAEA - hiEmE
KB BEBERE - MK WEFL - H
ERPURRBERBELZFEAHEBLEELER -
I REEERFE AT « AHEAESHEE
EREFEREZESIR RREEEREFE
BREECETRULTEERBBER - 20125
F2018F MR E B AERERESERE -

Jhk4E
(F32020-10-12i + EHI#§742023-10-11/E /M)

Mr Grabowski is the CEO and an Executive Director of the AFRC. Prior to
joining the AFRC, he was the Director of Audit Policy of the UK Financial
Reporting Council for more than 10 years, during which he led the
development and maintenance of the UK standards for auditing, assurance
and professional ethics for auditors and reporting accountants. From 2014 to
2019 he was also a Board member of the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board, which sets the International Standards on Auditing and
Assurance Engagements. Prior to joining the UK FRC in 2010, he was a
Partner of an international accounting firm for 20 years, during which he
performed technical, audit and capital markets transaction reporting roles in
the UK and overseas.

Mr Stephen Hung
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BHRER S Y FERBNITHRAR R#TT
EE o MAKRBA - S X B 5 ERBET
BUR M ESBR10F - B E I Mg R A FIE
HREFTAIMELT  HERFEBEEL - 52014
F2019%F © thREB BN ANLFE LA ZESNE
ERKE ZZEEHITE T RBREIZEER
Z¥E o E2010F MA B ISERDZ AT - R
—REB M ESAETABA20F  EER
MBIHINEERIN - BAMEATERFERHT
fE o

CEE LS
(F2018-12-01iE : EH#57742023-09-30/E 7)

N

Mr Hung is a Past President of the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is currently
the Chairman of the Law Society’s Legal Education Committee and Criminal
Law and Procedure Committee.

In his own capacity, he serves on the Board of Review (Film Censorship), Law
Reform Commission, Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme
Vetting Committee, Duty Lawyer Service Council, Disciplinary Tribunal of the
Financial Dispute Resolution Centre and the Standing Committee on Judicial
Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Mr Hung is an Adjunct Professor of Law of the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University and the Law School of Beijing Normal University. He is also a
Visiting Professor of the Faculty of International Law of China University of
Political Science and Law in Beijing, China and a part-time tutor in the Faculty
of Law of the University of Hong Kong.

R R BARMEA YR - BE - REMITE
RENGERBAZEGIREMAERFREFZ
BgXE-

A - RRREIABEA S D RBNERZE S (BY
BE)  BABERENFZRES BHEIKBERE
RUBERGHERAEIELZEE - EERER
BEZEE  eRUMARPLLEERMANFDE
ABHERREENHEBERES -

FREE MR BB CRBEFEHE - LRI A
BERBRFBHE - PEBERERBEZRE
BEHREREBABLRBEARERZ AN ER
TR AR o
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Ms Miranda Kwok, JP
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

R E 2L+ - K+t
(FB2018-12-01#8 ; {EHA##22023-09-30/E /")

Ms Kwok has been serving China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited for over 37 years and is now the Non-Executive Director of the bank.
She is a member of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, Process
Review Panel for Securities and Futures Commission, Risk Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the EFAC
Financial Infrastructure and Market Development Sub-committee, Air
Transport Licensing Authority as well as the Standing Committee on Judicial
Salaries and Condition of Service. Ms Kwok graduated with an Honorable
Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and Management from
the University of Hong Kong in 1984, and graduated with honours from the
Graduate School of Retail Bank Management of the Consumer Bankers
Association in the United States in July 2001.

Ms Rosita Lee
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

B RF R BRRIRTT (M) IR BRAFE
BI7TF - BRIRZITIHAITES - EET AN

TAEREGKE  BFIEEBERZES
BFERZEENE BARSIRBEMERA

FRAKREEZEGNE INEESHHNEESE
TRZeRERRMBSHREZESELE  TEERR
BB RAEABHERREEHEBEESE
B o L TRN1984FREBHAEBREMEE 24t
SR BLEEE BN TBREEREESE  BR
2001 F7 AEBSHERTERITRASHENT
ERITEBLBEER -

=Mz +
(F12018-12-01# © {EHI#5742023-09-30/E %)

Ms Lee is a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng Investment
Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank. She
is also a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng Investment
Services Limited, and a Director of Hang Seng Qianhai Fund Management
Company Limited which is the first foreign-majority-owned joint venture fund
management company established in the Mainland.

Ms Lee holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of
Hong Kong, a Master of Science degree in Global Finance jointly awarded
by The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and New York
University STERN Business School and is a Certified Financial Planner. With a
strong commitment to serving the community, she is currently the Chairman
of the Arbitration Panel under the Securities and Futures (Leveraged Foreign
Exchange Trading) (Arbitration) Rules of Hong Kong’s Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC); a member of Legal Aid Services Council; a member of the
Products Advisory Committee under SFC and a member of China Committee
of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. Ms Lee is also invited as
a Member of Beta Gamma Sigma (HKUST Chapter) and a Member, Hong
Kong Academy of Finance.
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Mr Stephen Lee
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)
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ZHEBXE
(FB2019-10-01#8 ; {EHA#E#2023-09-30/E /)

Mr Lee has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management at KPMG in London and Hong Kong. He retired from KPMG
in 2011 as Partner-in-Charge of the Risk Consulting practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, mainland China and the Asia Pacific region, and is
currently serving as a Governor and Past President of The Institute of Internal
Auditors Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director at
two companies.

He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and is an Associate Member of The Institute of Directors and The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr Keith Lui
(from 2020-10-01; current appointment expires on 2024-09-30)

FhEEERANEANESHSTMER%S
HBIB30OFMEEr BN BERLER - bR
01FREFERK EREZEFHEE - P E
N R EAMERBBAEBNEEGRA B
BEEANBEZMESHEERIAEER - b
HEEMR R RIRIELIERITES ©

B REB RIS REEERABES T
ESHMASMEREE - REFRER B
BTGB REERE -

BHEXEE
(F12020-10-01#8 : {EH3#5742024-09-30/E %)

Mr Lui was the Executive Director (August 2006 — August 2019) of the
Supervision of Markets Division of the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC). During his service at the SFC, he was the Chairman of the Investor
Compensation Fund Committee and the Securities Compensation Fund
Committee, and a member of the Advisory Committee, Investment
Committee, and SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee. He was also a member of
the Statutory Risk Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited. He had worked for various financial institutions in the US and
Hong Kong in the areas of deposit taking and lending, asset management
and investment banking.

Mr Francis Siu
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

ELEEIESRPEERERTE S (BED)
THi5 ES R E0E0 1T 448 (200648 A =20194F8A) °
FESAREE HhRETREEREESE
EENBELFHEASZESXR  UNFBHES
g REZBESNEES (BAERZMLEMEE
GKE - WMABRBRZREEMBRAFIETE
EREEZEEKE - thEEEBRFETENZR
CREETE AEGTRNER BETEME
BIRITERS -

mEREE
(F52019-10-014E ; {FEA#5542023-09-30/E %)

Mr Siu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Mr Siu graduated from the University of Sheffield UK in 1979. After that,
he joined KPMG Manchester, UK and returned to Hong Kong in 1986 and
became a partner of KPMG Hong Kong in 1993. From 2000 to 2002, he was
a senior partner of KPMG Shanghai Office. From 2002 to March 2010, he
was a senior partner of KPMG Beijing Office, and a senior partner of Northern
Region, KPMG China.

He is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

MAELERBBEMAGNAR MBS
AHEIAENERES o

MA19790F E R BIEMASEE - EAIMAZR
BEHEE S BT RS E RN 1986F AR EEE
EBEHH > WM FREBEEREBSESEH
EFTERA o H2000F E2002F HifH] - b E S
BERSTMEBAM EEDMETERAEAR
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Dr Peter Wan, MH
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

FiOEE L - REHT
(FB2019-10-01#8 ; {EHA#E#2023-09-30/E /)

Dr Wan is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He has over 30 years of practising experience and was
a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers before retirement. He has since been
invited to join the Board of Directors of a number of listed companies as
Independent Non-executive Director. He also serves in stewardship positions
in several NGOs and service organisations.

Mr Edward Yuen
(from 2021-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

FRIEBEGIOAEG  BHASHARERE
REEBEZEAREE  REB=1F - RIKA
RESFKESTMELANERABA - R
BEMASRLETARZESRR - HAEBIIEH
TES - MBS EFBUTFASHMRE EEET
BRI -

BrEEsH oA
(F32021-10-01%8 ¢ (EEA##22023-09-30/& )

Mr Yuen has over 30 years of experience in finance and accounting for
various companies, including multinationals, with the last position as the
Area Finance Director of Pepsi-cola International, and Hong Kong listed
companies, with the last position as the CFO of Hsin Chong Construction
Company Ltd.

Mr Yuen is a Certified Public Accountant. He obtained his M.Sc. degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and M.B.A. degree from
the University of California, Berkeley.

Membership and attendance at Board meetings during the 12-month
period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

TR EEAS0Z F M R EFHER - IRFBRE
BEACEMEE LTNZHEAR  BEEEEE
TERMBRERNELEERMTE °

PreEREME st - HEEERRASELE
2 RN KRB R AR T E BB T8 -

HZ2023F3A31AW12E R iR EERFEE
HEXERHEERNT :

Meetings attended/held

gRHE BITRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BAEE L REFESE - KFEL(EE) 7/7
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMREE - RBEE - KTt 6/7
Mr Marek Grabowski (CEO) SN (TTB L) 6/6
Mr Eugene Fung, SC IBEERRSTAE - BIRARAD 6/7
Mr Stephen Hung RRB(EEE 6/7
Mr Stephen Lee THBLE 7/7
Mr Keith Lui BN LA 7/7
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP ST AL - KFEL 6/7
Ms Rosita Lee 2 {m 2z 1 7/7
Mr Francis Siu EREE 6/7
Dr Peter Wan, MH FINEEL - REHE 7/7
Mr Edward Yuen o Srtes 6/7

The average attendance rate was 93%.
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Committees

Seven committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the

AFRC.

Advisory Committee

The Advisory Committee was established on 29 July 2022 under section

10B of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (AFRCO)

to advise the Board on matters of policy regarding any of its regulatory

objectives and functions.

Terms of reference

° To advise the AFRC on matters of policy regarding any of its regulatory

objectives and functions.

. At the request of the AFRC, to advise on matters of policy regarding any

of the AFRC'’s regulatory objectives and functions.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the

12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

ZEE
SHRUBERRRE 7 EEEE - HTRES
REE RS -

ok

ZHEEE
BAZESRBIE(S T RUBERBIEH) FE
10BER 202247 A208 /K * EHEMB HEES
BHREBERBENBREE  MEFRREER
EJ °

=l

BiEsE
s HEVRAERFRKBEMABRFERHEE
B

s REVRENXR HEMRREBRFRBIEN
BREERHTER -

B ZE2023F3A31AW12BA i - ZES2H
HERERHERMNT :

Meetings attended/held

BEEEBTRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) FERGEL - REFEE - K- (FE) 2/2
Mr Clement Chan, MH, JP BREFERTE - REBE - AFHEL 2/2
Ms vy Cheung sRAEIN 22+ 2/2
Mr Stephen Fung RSEMSTE 1/2
Mr Marek Grabowski B[hkE 1/2
Mr Edward Lau BlEsRkE 2/2
Ms Elizabeth Law, MH, JP BmAELL  BEHE - KTt 2/2
Mr Patrick Law ‘mEREE 2/2
Ms Doris Lian S 1/2
Mr Chee-keong Low Bz 2/2
Mr Webster Ng, JP REFELAE - K T4 2/2
Dr Christopher To (GEE 2/2
Ms Flora Wang TRzt 2/2
Ms Daisy Yeung BFL T 2/2

The average attendance rate was 89%.

HEFHHEE A% -

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
EHF 2022-23F 5




22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the Operations Manual for Inspection (which
covers areas such as inspection strategy, inspection process and
follow-up actions).

To provide advice on the annual inspection plan, selection mechanism
to determine which firms and engagements are subject to inspection
and guidelines to determine the audit quality rating of a PIE engagement
subject to inspection.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on
inspection findings, audit quality rating or follow-up actions on individual
cases.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on the
extent of publication of inspection findings on individual firms (e.g. to
the audit committee of the related listed entity, or to the public), and the
contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the interim and annual inspection activity reports
of the AFRC to be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of
the performance of the inspection function by selecting a sample of
completed inspections and provide recommendations on the practices
and procedures of the inspection function.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

B ZF2023FE3A31B W12 I » EE€EE
HERERHFERMNT :

Meetings attended/held

BREHE BITRE

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (Chairman) FOMEEE - REBE - AP (EE) 6/6
Ms Rosita Lee (Vice-Chairman) WMLt (BEE) 5/6
Mr Eugene Fung, SC! ISEERBSTAE + BRAZED 1/3
Mr Keith Lui BN E 6/6
Mr Francis Siu REREE 6/6
Dr Peter Wan, MH FIEEL  REHE 6/6
Mr Edward Yuen B 5o £ 5/6
Ms Grace Hui FPREZ 4/6
Mr Stephen Wong FENEE 6/6
Ms vy Cheung SRFE I 4/6
Mr William Mak BEFREE 6/6

The average attendance rate was 85%.

1

Retired on 23 September 2022

Investigation and Compliance Committee
The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters
concerning the investigation and enquiry functions.

Terms of Reference

To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies,
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operations of the
investigation and enquiry functions.

To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus,
for the financial statements review programme annually.

To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditing
and professional ethics as identified by staff.

To receive operations reports of the Investigation and Compliance
Department, oversee the progress of enquiries, investigations,
complaints and financial statements reviews and provide
recommendations on operational matters.
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e  To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the complaint, review, investigation and enquiry handling
functions by selecting sample completed cases of:

o complaints and reviews which are closed without further action;

0 investigations initiated under the AFRCO which are suspended or
closed without further action or with follow-up action being taken;

o) enquiries conducted by the staff of the Department which are
suspended or closed without further action or with other follow-up
action being taken; and

° To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and enquiry
functions as requested by the Board from time to time.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

o EBWMBNTER  SEEKEF  B'BH - H
EREMBENRRETFEEN (BER
ErEH)

o DEANIEE—SITEMNIRTRERH

o REC(CEFAUBERGID)EFA - R
BEREUE — PR BETE M B (R
B REERFRIURETHHRE

o MAFMBIERMAMEERIE—FUR
ETBNEM &

s REERERTHUIAEREABENER
RHER -

B Z2023F3A31BW12 M ZEE2E2%
HERERBERNT :

Meetings attended/held

BRHE BITRY

Dr Peter Wan, MH (Chairman) FIRBEL - REHE(EE) 5/5
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) THESLEFIFE) 5/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC' BRI AE - BIRAER 2/3
Mr Anthony Leung RINRESE 5/5
Mr Eric Tong EERELE 5/5
Mr Stephen Weatherseed BEARSLE 4/5
Mr Edward Yuen =yt 5/5
Mr Stephen Hung? REB(E 5T HE? 2/2

The average attendance rate was 93%.

! Retired on 23 September 2022
2 Appointed on 28 October 2022

Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning policy research and guidance on governance issues,
the registration and recognition of audit practitioners, practice units and PIE
auditors, as well as oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of specified
functions, with the aim of improving the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

° To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Policy, Registration and
Oversight Department and oversee the performance of executives to
ensure effective implementation of the approved annual plan.
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° To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit and
corporate governance for identification and prioritization of research
proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the above
matters.

° To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives
being undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of
financial reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant
publications and thought leadership projects.

° To advise on matters in relation to the issue of practicing certificates
and registration of firm names, firms and corporate practices under Part
2A of the AFRCO, and the registration and recognition of PIE auditors
under Part 3 of the AFRCO.

° To advise the Board on the exercise of the power to impose conditions
regarding the issue and renewal of practicing certificates under section
20AAB and section 20AAG of the AFRCO, registration of corporate
practice under section 20AAZZG(3)(a) of the AFRCO, and registration
and recognition of PIE auditors under section 20S and 20ZR of the
AFRCO.

° To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of HKICPA’s
performance of functions specified in section 9(b) of the AFRCO
(Specified Functions), including recommendations to HKICPA on its
performance of Specified Functions, and advise the Board on the
exercise of the power to issue directions to HKICPA under section
10(1A)(c) of the AFRCO.

° To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
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12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows: HEREREERNT :
Meetings attended/held
BEHE BITRE
Ms Rosita Lee (Chairman) MMzt (FE) 4/4
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) THELE (BIFE) 4/4
Mr Stephen Hung REB(EEE 2/4
Mr Keith Lui B LA 4/4
Mr Francis Siu R EE 4/4
Mr Paul Smith Paul Smith%c & 4/4
Ms Nancy Tse, JP FEB L - KRt 4/4
Mr Jackson Woo FARER S 4/4
Prof Wayne Yu BIEIEHIE 2/4

The average attendance rate was 89%.
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Discipline Committee
The Discipline Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
disciplinary functions.

Terms of Reference
° To provide comments and observations on the recommendation reports
of the Discipline Department in relation to disciplinary cases.

° To oversee the overall performance of the Discipline Department on an
annual basis.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

KEERIEES
RERIZEENABLCERIBENSEERAE
FREfER -

BEsE

o HLBREONERMLEREN EARNEFERS
RESEMEE -

o HRERENMMEBRERIETRFEEE -

B Z2023F3A31EW12 AN » ZEE€E%
HERERHERMNT :

Meetings attended/held

BRHE BITRY

Mr Eugene Fung, SC (Chairman)" JERERSEAE - BRAERD (/) 4/4
Mr Stephen Hung ARIE{ESEE 3/4
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP FONFSLAE - KEBBE - KFEAT 3/4
Mr Stephen Lee FHEXE 4/4

The average attendance rate was 88%.

! Appointed on 23 September 2022

Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on finance,
budgeting, corporate communications, administration and other corporate
matters of the AFRC.

Terms of reference

° To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to Finance, Administration, Information
Technology and Corporate Communications matters.

° To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

° To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee
the implementation of the audit recommendations.

° To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft annual
budget and forecast, including reviewing and monitoring the actual
performance against budget.

° To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury management
and related performance.
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° To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial o

sustainability of the AFRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

° To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure. °

° To make recommendations to the Board on the award of the tender for e
procurement.

° To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information e
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

° To formulate strategies for external communications and promotion of e
public awareness of the AFRC.

° To exercise oversight on the effective implementation of communications
and public promotion strategies.

° To consider and review AFRC’s Investment Policy annually for Board’s e
approval.

° To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time. o
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Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the & 202353831812 - E82223F

12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows: HERBEREERNT :
Meetings attended/held
BRHE BITRE
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Chairman) T L - KFEME(EE) 3/4
Mr Francis Siu (Vice-Chairman) FRIEREE (BIF/E) 4/4
Mr Marek Grabowski BhEaE 3/4
Mr Edward Yuen BrEE, 5t A 3/4
Dr Eva Chan PREAGEER L 3/4
Mr Keith Pogson Bl E 4/4
Mr Richard Tsang SESAE 3/4
Dr Mike Chen' BRAEEIE L 2/2
Mr Stephen Hung? ARIE{E oA 1/2

The average attendance rate was 81%. 2ETALREERB1% -

! Retired on 11 October 2022 1
2 Retired on 28 October 2022 2
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Compensation and Nomination Committee

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on
all human resources-related matters and nominations to be made or
recommended by the AFRC.

Terms of reference
° To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies, procedures and related issues.

° To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of
staff remuneration.

° To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market.

° To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Executive
Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel).

° To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the
Government that are relevant for the AFRC.

° To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the
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12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows: HERBRHEEZRNOT
Meetings attended/held
gRHE BITRY
Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BEAMEL  |REFEE - KFEHT(EE) 5/5
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Vice-chairman) ST L - KFeLt (BEE) 5/5
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEEE - RBEE - KT 3/5
Mr Marek Grabowski B[AKE 4/5
Mr Francis Mok BREEE 5/5
Mr David Stannard HERE S 4/5
Ms Janet Li FFRLZT 5/5

The average attendance rate was 89%.
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Regulatory Reform Committee
The Regulatory Reform Committee was established in April 2021 as an ad
hoc committee to advise the Board on matters relating to the Further Reform
of the regulatory regime for the accounting profession. The Committee
was dissolved in October 2022 upon fulfilment of its objective after the
commencement of the Further Reform.

Terms of reference

° To provide advice to the Board on matters related to the reform of the
regulation of auditors and certified public accountants in Hong Kong (the
Further Reform).

° To oversee, on behalf of the Board, the work of AFRC staff in relation
to the Further Reform, including the assumption of statutory powers
under the Further Reform, necessary amendments to our policies and
procedures, and any transitional arrangements relating to the regulation
of auditors and certified public accountants; and to ensure that any
related preparation or implementation is undertaken in accordance with
the directives of the Board or any agreed timeline.

° To receive timely updates and consider progress reports from AFRC
staff on the progress of the Further Reform.

° To undertake any specific tasks or provide advice on any specific matter
related to the Further Reform as required by the Board from time to
time.

° To prepare minutes and progress reports to the Board.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:
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EENEZESR
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HERERHERNT :

Meetings attended/held

BRHEBITRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) ERGEL - REFEE - Ko+ (FE) 3/3

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEAE L - REFE - KP4t 3/3

Mr Eugene Fung, SC FSEERBSTAE  BIRAERAD 3/3

Mr Marek Grabowski B/HEE 3/3

Mr Stephen Hung RRIB{ESEAE 3/3

Mr Keith Lui BHLEE 3/3
The average attendance rate was 100%. FHFHLEEERE100% °
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Organisation Structure
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The Board
The Board oversees the Management to discharge the functions of the AFRC
efficiently and effectively to serve the public interest.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), leads the staff to manage
the operations of the AFRC to ensure that the organisation’s statutory
functions are performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the AFRC are carried out by six departments with clear
segregation of responsibilities.

Inspection Department

The Inspection Department is responsible for carrying out inspections with
the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection
in relation to a PIE auditor focuses on how a PIE auditor conducted PIE
engagements and on the effectiveness of the PIE auditor's quality control
system to determine whether the applicable professional standards and legal
and regulatory requirements have been complied with. All PIE auditors that
undertake PIE engagements are subject to inspections.

An inspection in relation to a practice unit focuses on whether a practice unit
is acting in accordance with Professional Accountants Ordinance professional
standards. All practice units that undertake engagements other than PIE
engagements are subject to inspections.

Investigation and Compliance Department

The Investigation and Compliance Department is responsible for carrying
out the investigation and enquiry functions of the AFRC. It may initiate
an investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the pubilic,
whistleblower reports, referrals from other regulators, internal referrals arising
from inspections of auditors or the AFRC’s own financial statements review
programme.

Discipline Department

The Discipline Department is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the AFRC. It will take appropriate and timely disciplinary actions in
cases of misconduct by imposing commensurate sanctions for the purposes
of deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the
quality of financial reporting and audits, and upholding the standards of
conduct among regulatees.
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Policy, Registration and Oversight Department

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Department is responsible for
registration functions including the issuance of Practising Certificates,
registration of firm names and firms, corporate practices, local auditors as
public interest entity (PIE) auditors, and recognition of overseas auditors as
PIE auditors. Under the AFRCO, it oversees the performance of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) in respect of their
statutory functions specified in the AFRCO (Specified Functions). In addition,
the department also conducts policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publishes guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.

Legal Department

The Legal Department is responsible for providing legal advice to the Board
on all matters concerning the AFRC and for providing all departments with
vital legal support for the successful delivery of departmental initiatives and
the strategic development of the organisation as a whole.

Finance and Administration Department

The Finance and Administration Department is responsible for managing
matters in relation to finance, budget, human resources, corporate
communication and general administration of the AFRC.

Practice of Corporate Governance

Internal Controls
The AFRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties.

The AFRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to
personnel administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Board members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.
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Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct for Board Members

The Code of Conduct for Board Members has been revised and approved by
the Board during the year. All Board Members are required to adhere to the
Code of Conduct. It sets out the basic standard of conduct expected of all
Board Members and the AFRC’s policy on matters such as the acceptance of
advantages, declarations of conflicts of interest, confidentiality of information,
misuse of information and use of public funds by Board Members in
connection with their official duties.

Code of Conduct for Staff Members

The Code of Conduct for Staff Members has been revised in the year to bring
it in line with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and the latest ICAC
sample codes, and explains relevant matters in greater detail, in particular in
relation to acceptance of advantages by staff members.

AFRC staff members are required to adhere to our Code of Conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the AFRC. Our Code of Conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their own
and their spouses’ investments in listed securities, and to notify any changes
in their portfolio.

Communications with Stakeholders

The AFRC proactively communicates with stakeholders including the
accounting profession, our regulatory counterparts, and members of the
public.

We publish periodic regulatory reports, guidelines, market research, press
releases and quarterly reports to keep them informed of key regulatory issues,
up-to-date findings, the progress of our work and our latest developments.
Monthly operations statistics in relation to our investigations and enquiries are
posted on the AFRC website (afrc.org.hk).

We also foster close collaborations with professional bodies by organising
briefings and webinars and sharing the latest publications and news. The
AFRC also communicates with stakeholders via social media channels.

Accountability and Audit

The AFRC is subject to a strict audit process. The AFRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Board. The Financial Secretary then reviews and
approves the AFRC’s annual estimates of income and expenditure.

The financial statements of the AFRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Financial Secretary
and tabled at the Legislative Council. The AFRC attends a meeting of the
Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs to present the annual budget.
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Process Review Panel (PRP)

The AFRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently and that all actions and
decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines. The PRP
issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review, together with
suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the PRP are approved
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman
The AFRC is subject to indirect oversight by the Office of the Ombudsman
which has statutory powers to investigate alleged acts of maladministration.
The AFRC did not receive any enquiries from the Ombudsman during the
reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BENE(FLIRR

Highlights RE

Key figures for 2022-23

Inspection

B

listed entity audit firms inspected
BE6K BB GAIELT

listed entity audit engagements inspected
EHR55(H FhEEEIER

130

engagements (other than listed entity
audit engagements) inspected

B LM EREIAR

1 specific scope inspection conducted
ETIRS EHEE R

Policy, Registration and Oversig

BER - sEREE

policy and governance publications
published
HARAD R R BRI

seminars conducted
BT TR S

attendees participated in our
engagement activities
#110,4002 AT T BEEHAE B BAEE)

new and renewal applications for
registration of practice unit approved
BUET7, 07T R B 2T B AR R

Corpora

Hia

115

new and renewal applications for
registration of local PIE auditor approved
PETIR A ABNFEEZBMN 2
# B HR

new and renewal applications for
overseas entities

HE/E60Z TSN B BB 2T B M R AE

HKICPA's periodic reports reviewed

EHAN BB S AGHEH RS total expend

2022F £2023F FTEHIE

Investigation and enq

AEREM

185

pursuable complaints and referrals received
BEE185 R A AT BRI AR R

financial statements selected for review under
the Financial Statements Review Programme

RIBH iR E B8 ME 130 M IR

investigations initiated
EFET2(ERE ER

investigations completed
SR8 R E Bz

enquiries initiated
EF17EERIEZR

enquiries completed
TR 2{EE R EZR

te

headcounts as at 31 March 2023
11528 T (5202343A31H)

175 mitionEE

iture in the 12 months ended

31 March 2023

HKICPA committee meetings observed
AR B SRR B G TRIAE

27 EQ S

3 r d oversight assessment report published
BME—MHEETE®RE

wx i (B E2023F3H83181H12EA)
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

The following tables highlight our work during 2022-23. More details are T~ &5 FFI522022-23 F MW TIERE - &
provided in subsequent sections. ZH BN EBEERE -

| Inspection &%

Reports Published our second Annual Inspection Report in June 2022, which provided full-year results

| of our inspections of listed entity engagements completed in 2021, audit quality ratings of
these engagements, the key drivers of the ratings, common deficiencies identified in the firms’
systems of quality control and our expectations of auditors, directors and audit committees in
response to our inspection findings.

Issued our third Interim Inspection Report in November 2022, which provided timely disclosure
of significant findings from our 2022 inspections, key reminders for 2022 December year-end
audits, potential areas of inspection focus in 2023 and updates on our inspection approach
under the Further Reform. We also set out our expectations of the actions to be taken by
auditors, directors and audit committees ahead of the coming busy season to uphold audit
quality.

R2022F6 ATIBE _MNFEERRE %%EEAZON FERNLETEBBESENEFE
R ZEHEENBHERFTR  FRNEIZRE - RNt EBHE REEGE R0
BRRARBEMEZHBE  EZRETZESHEERMERERZBE -

R2022F 11 BB MEBE =D EERRE - HHE2022FERMEAEE  2022F FIREFETHY
RASRIREE - 2023 F M BEEEREUBBEUAREE —FRETERHFANNRFER - FHII7I
HE I EED - EEREANZESEABIRNE = ETREITB A G ERTE =
HALE o

Guide to performing Issued a guide to performing root cause analysis in June 2022 to provide guidance to auditors
root cause analysis for performing a robust root cause analysis and formulating a plan of action to remediate audit
HTHEANEEDHE  quality deficiencies and improve the quality of their audits.

sl
202246 B BEMMITIRAIRESTEIIES] - AXBETAIT 2 ERRARRE DT K HIE /R
HiTERRAR S RIRMIESI RS EETER -

Survey Published the results of our follow-up survey in November 2022 with respect to the

HE implementation progress of the new and revised quality management standards, common
challenges encountered, resources required for the implementation process, and
implementation guides and materials used.
72022411 A FIZE B BT AT MR IERT ?%? PRARNEEEES  TRIE  BHEKAFTEE
R RETAMEREESI MR RERESER -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BN EFRRE

| Inspection
Open letters Issued an open letter to all listed entity auditors in October 2022 to express our growing
NS concerns over the surge in the number of listed entity auditors resigning just one month before

or even after the end of the reporting period of a listed entity. The open letter set out our
expectations of outgoing and incoming auditors to remind auditors of the importance of high-
quality financial reporting and audits.

Issued a follow-up open letter in January 2023 to reiterate our expectation of both listed entity
auditors and Audit Committee on late auditor resignation.

R2022FF10 AT L EBRHMMBEHARE st LM ERRHEE LT ERERARE
— (B8 A BT E L ERERBHENR B B - RRRVE - ZARERARALRERN
ERBENEE  AREREMSERYBERLBANERN -

R20235F1 ABMRBLRE  ERRMMKEE A REHEYH LT ERKBAREFEZEE

BIEREE o
Year-end audits Issued the first year-end audits reminders, namely “Audit Focus”, in December 2022 to
reminders remind auditors of the key audit issues and areas they should pay particular attention to when
FRERATER performing 2022 December year-end audits.

R2022F 12 A B R EMERBAIEIR @ BI[FJAEH] - B EREXIEERIT20225F
FREATIER - REFHIEENERET FEMEE -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFER

Qperaﬁons
EE

Report

==
[=]

Cross-border
cooperahons

BRaE

Published the Complaint Guidelines with interactive online complaint and whistleblower
forms on the AFRC’s website to facilitate the public and whistleblowers’ understanding of the
complaint handling procedures and to encourage the report of wrongdoing or misconduct in
areas we regulate.

KA DR BAMIRHIESER M L EBIRF RBIRERE - WMEERRRBERAHRFEIERE
FROTE  SERRARBEMEEREINEEIRRETRAELER -

Expanded regulatory remit under the AFRCO to cover professional persons (i.e., certified
public accountants and practice units) in addition to Public Interest Entity (PIE) auditors and
registered responsible persons of registered PIE auditors.

Deployed e-Discovery forensics to facilitate the conduct of an investigation of a high-profile
case which involved joint search operations of the offices of a PIE auditor.

Completed eight investigations.

Referred six cases of completed investigation to the Discipline Department for consideration
of disciplinary actions.

REB(GE U BERBDED) BAEEBEAREARNEERZEE MAMARNRER
ZEEN 2 iEM BB AN EEA L CIESHENMBAEELL)

BITEFREERE - REHFR - BARFZEBREEMAEHARRITHNESEE @
RH)RE -

5K 8 ML °

AR D FEN 6 EE TR ASERAEE BETLRES °

Published our second Annual Investigation and Compliance Report in October 2022 which
highlighted findings of misconduct by PIE auditors and financial reporting non-compliances
arising from our investigations, enquiries and proactive reviews of financial statements of
listed entities. This raised the awareness of auditors and boards, audit committees and
management of listed entities to avoid the recurrence of misconduct and to enhance the
quality of their financial reporting and audits.

R 2022 10 AEME _MNFREATHRE - EH RN A BEBZBENRETANARE
R URAEAS EAREGEN LM EENMBERABANTFRETENEE - 182
ST ETEEZEE R FHZEGREEENER  BEBRABRLERETRALRES
HEBERREAEE -

Made requests for assistance to the SEB to obtain the audit working papers located in the
Mainland for 8 investigation cases.

AEETE BRI B - LS THUERLA 8 () B AR E TIEER -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BB R EFERE
Stakeholder Introduced AFRC’s expanded regulatory functions at the “2022 CPD Carnival Day”, jointly
engagement organised by The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and seven professional
iq%g,“%jé accounting bodies in Hong Kong, in November 2022 to share findings and recommendations

of our recent publications, exchange views on issues and challenges facing the profession and
highlight our forthcoming focuses in the long-term sustainable development of the accounting
profession.

Delivered a series of seminars with various professional accounting bodies to keep our
stakeholders abreast of the registration and levy requirements under the new regime.

Conducted briefing sessions for members of professional bodies, many of whom were
members of audit committees, management of listed entities, as well as auditors, to enhance
the awareness and promote the adoption of our recommendations in our publication
“Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment of
Auditors”.

REBEANGHARRER 7 AEXSHHIBE 2022 F 11 ABF A MHN[2022 FE S5
EIRTEEREBRFE L - DFARTHHARTIYA IR &2 - 55 57 e A R gk
BRMER - WRARMIARRESHITERMIRERROME -
ERRMNEXERERTT —RIITE  BENE THFAHE THREMMAERE -

AEFRBRERTTHRE  MZABETEESKE EHERBERENZHE - )
REERHMMEERATRECETZRRSAMERES — BB ZERERZEZHED) T

YRR ©
Policy and Published the study report “Audit Fees Paid by Listed Companies in Hong Kong 2020/2021”
governance in March 2023, to raise the transparency of the market and advance the understanding of the
BENES relationship between audit fees and audit quality; and provide insights on the implications of

fee levels on the sustainable development of the profession.

Published the 2023 Survey Report on the Implementation of “Guidelines for Effective Audit
Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors” (the Guidelines) in
March 2023, which shows a mixed picture on the effective implementation of the Guidelines
since its publication in December 2021.

Issued a follow-up open letter with Inspection Department in January 2023 reiterating our
expectations of both PIE auditors and Audit Committees on late auditor resignation.

Published an article on the Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) website to raise
the awareness of retail investors and the general public on the issue of late auditor resignation.

72023 4 3 AEM(ES LT AR 2020/ 21 FEEBT BRI IRE - #EiiRamiHERE -
REYEBARETEEZMEMNER  URERKFUERBERENTERERE -

R 2023 £ 3 A% 2023 FR(EFTZ B S EFES| - g - RERBH R EREBAEN(E
Ee‘igﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%  BURB SR 2021 F 12 AERAK - HAERERBFRLER

R 2023 FF 1 ABRBRIHHREARE  ERRMEBMEREHEMHRRNEEEBEK
BRI RBARRENHE

RREERBEVHEZEGPUBR—RXE  URES—RREERLEAREREE AR
BHESEHIRE -
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EENEFER

Registration

Implemented the first registration and renewal cycle under the new regime. Through the
establishment of a comprehensive, user-friendly, end-to-end system, including a dedicated
website, an online application system, how-to guides, video tutorials, and enquiry tools, the

Hosted a celebratory reception in March 2023 to commemorate a significant milestone for
practising certificate holders who have held their certificates for 50 years.

B HIE TOE B R ERAY - BEREYE2H - HEERRIIG RS - BEE
R - MLERAES - BFEs|  BRRBERERTA - BHEREIERIZEHK

2023 F 3 ABMTENRE - LSNXSIBANEXEE O BNERREM -

Published our third oversight report on HKICPA'’s Performance of the Specified Functions in

=t i

cycle was completed on time and smoothly.
Oversight
= November 2022.

Signed a Revised Statement of Protocol on Oversight Arrangement with the HKICPA in
August 2022, to bring greater clarity and transparency to our oversight function under the new
regime.

2022 F 11 AR MER B LM AT WITIEABENE = HEBRE -

2022 F 8 ARFAEFIMAGRZE(ELEBELRIGARE)  URSENHE TEER
BER)BHMTE KB PAE o
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BN EFRRE
Consultation and Launched an 8-week public consultation from March to May 2022 on the disciplinary process
engagement and sanctions approach.
A ERE

Conducted a series of engagement meetings with a wide range of stakeholders to explain our
proposals on the disciplinary process and sanctions approach.

Received 20 written submissions from a broad range of respondents, made appropriate
amendments to the disciplinary guidance materials and further clarified the intent and practical
aspects of our proposals.

Published Consultation Conclusions and held a press briefing in June 2022.

2022 F3 AE 5 A » BicBREDIEF RED T AELAE 8 BRI AFEN °
HEZRNERT - FINERSE  HESVRULERSIEF RED AR o

WRIREEZRBIHEEALH 20 NERE  BRRERRDEEXHHELBEEERTIE—F
REMEENRERESER -

2022 & 6 A - BMEABRETRITHEE RS

Policies and Published disciplinary policies and guidelines applicable to PIE auditors and registered
guidelines responsible persons as well as professional persons.
BER K 1ES

EMERARARNAERZEELEMEEAAREZATOLREDBRKLIES|

Operations Manual Completed internal Operations Manual to provide procedural guidance to staff on the handling

BIEFM of disciplinary cases.
SERCHITE AEREEF - mE IR BRMER L EE S ARWIZFES| -

Discipline Facilitated the establishment of the Discipline Committee to advise the Board on matters
Committee concerning the disciplinary function and provide oversight.
HKEESEEE

BB ARRENRES RARLCREIBESENESTRREHEIMEE -

Operations Implemented the Further Reform with the regulatory remit expanded to cover professional
BE persons, in addition to PIE auditors and registered responsible persons.

Commenced handling six disciplinary cases referred from the Investigation and Compliance
Department.

EipE—IHE  BARESHENRERARN A ERZEELEMAE ALINEEAL -
FSAEEIE B RRHE T Y 6 RACERE D [EZR
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EENEFER

| Legal

Further Reform
E—SHE

Corporate
governance

#wEEn

Collaboration with
other authorities

EREMEEEE

Reviewed draft subsidiary legislation under the Further Reform to identify potential issues
or gaps, especially in relation to transitional provisions governing the transfer to AFRC of
regulatory functions in respect of the accounting profession.

Worked closely with and provided legal support to the Policy, Registration and Oversight
Department to ensure all necessary forms and documentation for registration and licensing
functions (especially in relation to the annual renewal of registrations of the profession) were in

place, ready for the commencement of those functions on 1 October 2022.

EHE - FRERBEDNER - UBREERERRR  LEREHBR S EREER
S BMERMBIRIEX -

HIER - M REERMPIED A ELAERMUEESIR - ARRIMAMNEEREE R PR R
EXMF(CERAAEREMOFREERTRHER - WA 2022 F10 A 1 AFRARAHEBEE -
Revised delegation of powers by the Board to functional departments, including reviewing

existing delegation and incorporating new functions into the revised delegation of powers.

Drafted a new conflict of interest policy under the new section 53 of the AFRCO to replace
previous rules under the FRCO.

Provided legal and secretariat support to the newly established Advisory Committee.

ERTESRABEEFINERE - BRBMHNRARE RSN IELERT A RAE -

RIBCEF R ISE RGP FTET S 53 IRERFTH Mm@ REBGR - MBS E IR B IR
SRS

FFTAL M FE AR B RIRHUAE RWE RFSTE -

The signing of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Hong Kong Police Force.

HEBEHLRE AF T
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B REFERE
| Corporate 18
Talent Doubled headcount to 115 through a robust recruitment exercise.
development
AAIZER Leveraged training, appraisal and promotion policies to uplift the competence of staff.
BBARUEEE - BT ABUEI—E  ZE 115 A °
MAEI - ZEREHBER - BABI T8 -
Corporate Staged the AFRC Launch Ceremony to launch the new logo and corporate video.
communications
#EERH Published 3 quarterly reports and 33 press releases to communicate with stakeholders and

the public.
RIS BB HE - BHAREAEBZ S -

i 3 MNFEHRER B RIERR - BRFHENATEE -
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EENEFDRR

Inspection

What we do and why

Inspection is a key part of our market monitoring activities, which are
designed to address audit quality. Through our monitoring activities, we aim
to communicate with the market on our financial reporting and audit quality
expectations, monitor the quality delivered by the auditors against those
expectations, and provide feedback based on deficiencies we identify to drive
quality maintenance and improvement. We provide such feedback through
the follow-up actions we take to require remediation or deter the recurrence
of such deficiencies.

The performance of high quality audits and the maintenance of effective audit
quality management systems by auditors are crucial elements of the financial
reporting ecosystem and contribute to ensuring that Hong Kong remains a
competitive international financial centre. Effective from 1 October 2022, the
AFRC is vested with additional regulatory powers to conduct inspections of
all practice units and their compliance with the Guidelines on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing for Professional Accountants in
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

3-year review

The inspection function was set up under the amended Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance (FRCO) on 1 October 2019. Progressively throughout
the past 3 years (i.e., our first inspection cycle), we doubled our team size
to increase the scope of our inspections and to constantly enhance our
inspection programmes and approach so as to discharge our functions
efficiently and effectively. From 2020 to 2022, the number of auditors
and engagements inspected increased from 18 to 26 and from 38 to 61
respectively.

B

BMANITERBH
ERBUMAMSERIINERE R AHLEE
SR ERMET - BBRMNESTEE - &
EERMSEERMYVBERLREAERNH
2 ERNARHEEREREINEER - YRER
FIPTEER MR RIRHTIS RE A E R
BUE o HPBBRIURETE IR E - 2R
ERMRKNEIFEFEEE -

ZEMAITEEZNEF ARG BERNERTE
ZEEHE  RUKEREEZGOERE X
WHEBRRBEBIEARBESRP OMNBRFEN -
H2022F10A18#E  ABER FREIIESHE
N B EREEMNRERTET(EES A
EESTADFHGTEABELAMS TESESE
SIVEFTER -

=ZELE

ERBAEN2019F10 A1 BARB KB T (B 7§
FERBIEH) B - RBE=F BIERMAIE —1E
BRAH) BRMBESHEEBREER—F - U
MERGERTHECEREBRRA L  {mE
BME SR BBOEITIRE - #2020 52022
F EERMZHASERISKILEE26R ' &
= IEE fResELE611E -

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
I 2815 2020-235 %



MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Our progress and achievements

Robust inspections play a key role in monitoring and improving the quality
of audits, and therefore contribute to the protection of the interests of the
investors and the wider public. We continue to promote audit quality through
our highly interactive inspection processes and we report publicly on our
findings. Audits selected for inspections are subject to independent and
impartial reviews by our inspectors who have extensive expertise in auditing,
accounting and financial reporting. During the inspections, our inspectors
critically evaluate the firm’s System of Quality Control (SQC) and the quality
of audit evidence obtained by the auditors and challenge them on their risk
assessment and audit strategies. Through this interactive and robust exercise,

BN EFRRE

ERRRR

BENEENERRERBENTERTEEERR
ER - BANREREE REXRIROFE - &
MEBEBRBREEHNERERF  ARRMNE
BUARABREER - RMERERERNETE
BERIRMNERABNBIRALRR &
MMERABRET - @t RPBERTEHA
BEZHEZEME - RERBIED  HANER
ABBEF B EBHAME ZEEERZ
HENPTAS M BA BIRE X - WH AN A e
AHEAE SRR E W - BREEESH A

the auditors re-assess and re-evaluate their system of quality control and their BV » A2 BAD & el SR a8 A B =B H)
work, understand and learn from the deficiencies identified and take actions R HE TE - {2 BIHEVERK THE R EE - WEREL
to improve their next year’s audits. TTENRRE SR F AT LIE
Engagements
other than
Firms Listed entity listed entity
inspected in  engagements  engagements
2022/23 inspected inspected
72022/23%F E&ER EER
BEMH FEmm HIZE LT
Number of audit clients  FitEFHEHE =EEES BiR1ER EiBEE
Regular inspection EREE
More than 100 HBiE100 33 6
Between 10 and 100 1021002 fE 11 15 -
Less than 10 D10 7 -
26 55 6

Specific scope inspection #5E#EZEEE

In 2022 we completed inspections of 26 registered listed entity auditors in
Hong Kong and 55 listed entity engagements (2021: 17 registered listed entity
auditors and 50 engagements). In addition, following the Further Reform, we
exercised our expanded power to inspect 6 engagements other than listed
entity audit engagements in December 2022 and adopted a progressive
and proportionality approach to regulate practice units. We also conducted
inspections and assessments on the cases referred by the HKICPA under the
transitional arrangements. In response to the increasing trend of late auditor
resignations, we performed one specific scope inspection during the review
period.

We publish periodic reports to inform the public of the common deficiencies
identified and good practices observed from our inspections, such that
auditors can also consider our recommendations to avoid the recurrence of
such deficiencies and improve their audit quality in a timely manner.

720224 KK E B B26R M LT EEZ
AN R 55ME EEEIBE (20214 17K+ £
TMEEZEE RS0 ETHEBIER) AR - It
Hh o TEE— R B 1% - BAPTTE R AR 1R 2022
Fi12 A6 FTEBIE #ITER - WIREUH
EFABTBR RS B EITES - B
EREFMASREBELHENNERETE
REFHE - BEGZEEERERMIZREE
BRI BEER#ET T — N EHEER -

BPEHBERBE  AARBREERTIHN
FRRREBRINRFHOE - ABAZRED 55
ZEBEMNBZBRABLZERABRABELELRES
HESNEER -

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
EHF 2022-23F 5

45



46
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EENEFER

In June 2022, we published our second Annual Inspection Report for
inspections completed in 2021. The annual report included, amongst others,
full-year results of our inspections of listed entity engagements completed
in 2021, audit quality ratings of these engagements, the key drivers of the
ratings and common deficiencies identified in the firms’ systems of quality
control. It also provided an update on our evaluation of the remediation
actions undertaken by listed entity auditors which were subject to our 2020
inspection.

In November 2022, we issued our third Interim Inspection Report, which
provided timely disclosure of significant findings from our 2022 inspections,
key reminders for 2022 year-end audits, potential areas of inspection focus
in 2023 and updates on our inspection approach under the Further Reform.
We also reinforced our expectations of the actions to be taken by auditors,
directors and audit committees ahead of the coming busy season in the
report to uphold audit quality.

R20224%6 A - MBHE_NFRERRE -
BME2021FERHER - ENFERSEHE (B
FEE) R2021FERERN ETEREENS
FHER  ZFRANBHERTL  FENEE
JRE - LR 0 & 5t Bl 579 P 2 2 B 4% 61 7P )
BpE BB o R E MBI AIRTHE20205
R LB RBZBE TR ERITR MRS

M2022F11 A - BMIEME=HHPHERRE -
BAE2022F ERME A - 2022F FREH
FABEIZER - 20283F MBS REUHE U REHE
—SRETERFRANEIBEN - RMIMERE
ZEA EERENZESEAKIRNETS
I HARTER N T A MERE B A T RO HASE -

Ms Janey Lai, Head of Inspection, presents at the press briefing on the third Interim
Inspection Report.

EEMIERBRELLENEERE LAE =T HERREEE -

We organised 7 webinars for the listed entity auditors and members of
professional bodies to enable them to gain an in-depth understanding of the
results and recommendations of our inspections. These webinars served as
an effective platform for our stakeholders to exchange their views and raise
their concemns.

The final results of our 2022 inspections and our expectations for actions to
be taken by auditors and audit committees will be set out in our 2022 Annual
Inspection Report which will be published in July 2023.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

In June 2022, we issued An External Auditor’s Guide to Performing Root
Cause Analysis 1o provide guidance to auditors for performing a robust root
cause analysis and formulating a plan of action to remediate audit quality
deficiencies and improve the quality of their audits.

We also issued our first Audlit Focus on 22 December 2022 to urge auditors
to plan for the 2022 year-end audits and to remind them to pay particular
attention to key audit issues and focus areas.

In February 2023, we organised a webinar for the listed entity auditors in
reaction to the issuance of Audit Focus and the follow-up open letter in late
December 2022 and January 2023, respectively.

As previously mentioned, our inspections not only evaluate the quality of a
selection of audits completed by practice units but also the effectiveness of
the practice units’ systems of quality management. In November 2022, we
published the results of our follow-up survey of the progress being made
by firms in the implementation of the new and revised quality management
standards (QMSs). The publication aimed to drive the listed entity auditors’
awareness of the fast-approaching effective date of the new QMSs and
to provide an overview of the implementation status of different categories
of listed entity auditors. As the QMSs became effective on 15 December
2022, we will carry out inspections of the practice units’ systems of quality
management based on the requirements of the QMSs in the coming
inspection cycle.

To ensure that high quality and consistency are maintained in our inspection
process, we are subject to an appropriate level of oversight. In April and
May 2022, the Inspection Committee of the AFRC undertook a post-review
of a sample of inspections completed in 2021. It aimed to ensure that the
AFRC had maintained fairness and consistency in its inspection process and
properly used its regulatory powers. It also provided recommendations on
how we might enhance the practices and procedures. In December 2022,
the Process Review Panel (PRP) for the AFRC reviewed our second year’s
application of the inspection process to ensure that individual inspections
were handled consistently and in accordance with internal procedures and
guidelines. The PRP concluded that the cases subject to the review were
handled in line with the internal procedures.

Being an effective regulator in this fast-changing market, we took actions
in real-time to respond to the prevailing practice of the profession which
indicated risks to audit quality. We observed a surge in the number of listed
entity auditors resigning just one month before or even after the end of the
reporting period (the Late Resignations), which might result in potential
compromise on audit quality as the incoming auditor had limited time to plan
and conduct a proper audit ahead of the deadlines for announcing audited
results. We therefore formed a task force forthwith to analyse and monitor the
Late Resignations and made enquiries to relevant practice units to understand
and evaluate the reasons behind these changes in auditor’s appointment.

BN EFRRE

R20229F6 A - BAFIEM (RBEIRITRARE S
HregEsl) - AREENTT 2 E R A RE ST K
BEMMEAERRA D REMRES  MERHR
EAER-

HAFITFR2022F 12 H22 AR CERTRER) » 3R
2D 2022 F SR FFT S - W IR FIERF
P BRI BASRESt FIRMEE

R2023%2 A » F AR 2022412 A K & 20234
1D R ETES) MEEAREALT
BEZEAEN T SR LT E -

IETFTL - I B R TME T EE AT TR
METMER - TR EENEREEHERN
BRIE - 12022F11 8 - RIEAETEEHAT
BT NEETTEER LA (TERERE
ADREEEMRERAESER  SEIRE T EERX
AN E XEWERBAE AR - W RRELER] =
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In October 2022, we issued an open letter to all listed entity auditors to
express our growing concerns over the surge in the Late Resignations and
set out our expectations on the outgoing and incoming auditors to maintain
high-quality financial reporting and audits.

In January 2023, with collaborative efforts from the Policy, Registration
and Oversight Department, we issued a follow-up open letter to share
our observations on the disclosures in the listed entities’ announcement
surrounding the reasons for the changes in the auditor’s appointment and
to reiterate our expectation of both the listed entity auditors and the Audit
Committee on the Late Resignations. Our subsequent monitoring showed
that disclosures in the listed entities’ announcements presented more details
about the facts and circumstances leading to an auditor’s resignation, rather
than a nominal reason, such as audit fees.

Considering this increasing trend of the Late Resignations, we also
conducted one specific scope inspection to inspect the effectiveness of the
auditor’s system of quality control in relation to the acceptance of new client
relationships and specific engagements.

In respect of cross-border regulatory collaboration, we continued to maintain
close collaboration with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau of the PRC’s
Ministry of Finance through regular knowledge sharing, information exchange
and cooperation on matters of mutual interest.

Looking ahead
All listed entity auditors are inspected at least once during each three-year
inspection cycle, the first of which ended by March 2023.

Moving forward to the second inspection cycle, we will continue to conduct
inspections effectively and spearhead and lead the profession to higher audit
quality. We will also inspect a selection of practice units in the coming year to
shape their behaviour and promote a self-improvement culture within practice
units and across the profession.

We will extend our collaboration and information sharing with other regulators,
both in Hong Kong and in other jurisdictions to promote the healthy
development of the profession and reinforce Hong Kong’s position as a
leading international financial centre.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Investigation and enquiry

What we do and why

Investigation and enquiry are fundamental and essential enforcement
functions of the AFRC’s full-fledged independent regulatory and industry
oversight framework. We are committed to administering an investigation
regime that fosters high standards of professional conduct in the accounting
profession, enhances the quality of financial reporting and audits, delivers fair
and robust investigation outcomes to deter misconduct and non-compliance,
and protects investors’ interest.

Since the establishment of the then FRC in December 2006, we have been
vested with the powers of investigation and enquiry to conduct investigations
into possible misconduct by public interest entity (PIE) auditors and enquiry
into possible non-compliance with accounting requirements by PIEs in
their financial reports. Effective from 1 October 2022, we have been further
entrusted with the statutory duty to conduct investigation into professional
irregularities of professional persons, i.e. certified public accountants and
practice units.

Complaints and other sources of investigations and enquiries
The main sources of potential investigations and enquiries are:

(@)  Complaints from members of the public;
(b)  Whistleblower reports;

(c)  Referrals from other regulators;

(d) Internal referrals from Inspection; and

(e) Internal referrals from our Financial Statements Review Programme
(FSRP).

Complaints are an important source of intelligence for the AFRC to protect
the public interest effectively on a timely basis. We receive and consider
allegations of possible misconduct and professional irregularities, and conduct
investigations and enquiries as far as practicable.

We encourage other regulators, members of the public, our regulatees and
whistleblowers to provide us with intelligence about possible misconduct and
non-compliance. To this end, we have published the Whistleblower Policy
and Complaint Guidelines on the AFRC’s website to facilitate the public to
make complaints or provide information about possible misconduct they are
aware of. Referrals from other regulators are made through our established
channels.
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We adopt a proactive strategy to detect and identify financial reporting
non-compliances and auditing irregularities. In addition to monitoring
market events such as media reports, short-seller reports and market
announcements, we implemented the FSRP, a non-statutory initiative, that
proactively addresses financial reporting quality of listed entities. We select
financial statements of PIEs for review using a set of risk-based criteria,
which are reviewed and updated regularly in response to changes in the
current economic and regulatory environment and based on findings from our
monitoring of market events.

Investigations and Enquiries

Fair, transparent and robust investigations are one of the key regulatory tools
to protect the public interest, deter misconduct and shape the behaviour of
the profession.

In the context of investigations and enquiries, we carefully consider how to
respond to all potential misconduct/non-compliances. Formal investigation
or enquiry of a matter is undertaken after careful consideration of a range of
factors, which include: the seriousness of the misconduct/non-compliances,
public interest benefit, and sufficiency of evidence required to prove the
misconduct/non-compliance.

Up till 30 September 2022, findings of investigation cases involving audits of
listed entities completed before 1 October 2019 were referred to the HKICPA
for consideration of appropriate follow-up actions. Upon the commencement
of the AFRCO on 1 October 2022, all investigation findings where disciplinary
action is required are referred to the AFRC’s Discipline Department.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

In cases where we believe that there may be non-compliance with accounting
requirements by a PIE, we may initiate an enquiry, which may be conducted
either by the staff of the Investigation and Compliance Department or a
Financial Reporting Review Committee (FRRC). For enquiries cases where
we conclude that there is non-compliance, we may require the listed entity
concerned to remove the non-compliance in the specified manner and within
a specified period.

In line with our expanded remit under the Further Reform, we have
significantly expanded our team with a diverse range of talents, including
professional staff who are richly experienced in handling complaints and
investigations relating to CPA and CPA practices, and staff with regulatory
and forensic accounting experiences.

During investigations and enquiries, our staff critically evaluate the sufficiency
of the evidence; and we report publicly on our findings to educate the
market on common irregularities and non-compliances and enhance
market understanding of the importance of high-quality audits and financial
reporting. In October 2022, we published our second Annual Investigation
and Compliance Report with highlights on the observations and findings of
misconduct by listed entity auditors and financial reporting non-compliances
arising from our investigation and enquiry work. In addition, we have shared
our observations and findings in the report with stakeholders through
workshops organised by professional bodies.
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The AFRC holds a press briefing on its second Annual Investigation and Compliance Report on 20 October 2022.
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Our accountability and transparency are also embodied in our complaint
handling procedures. In early December 2022, we published the Complaint
Guidelines on our website to increase the public’s understanding of the
relevant procedures and factors that we consider in handling complaints. An
interactive complaint form and a whistleblower form have been simultaneously
launched to facilitate the public and whistleblowers to report wrongdoing or
misconduct in areas we regulate. As indicated in our “statistics on operational
performance” section, the number of complaints received from different
sources has significantly increased in this reporting period.

Amidst an increased number of complaints received and investigations
initiated, we have prioritised our resources to handle cases aged over three
years, cases where audit working papers located in the Mainland have been
obtained and cases with significant public interest. During the reporting
period, we concluded 8 investigations and 2 enquiries. We continued
sparing no effort to tackle the aging backlog cases whilst forging ahead
with a focus on high-impact cases. For instance, we have enhanced the
investigation process of high-profile cases with early collaboration from the
Discipline Department to increase efficiency and effectiveness in the conduct
of subsequent disciplinary action. We have also deployed e-Discovery
forensics to examine seizures obtained from the search of the offices of a PIE
auditor jointly conducted with the ICAC to ensure the evidential quality of our
investigative work.

On the regulatory cooperation with local and Mainland regulators, we worked
closely with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the PRC’s
Ministry of Finance (MoF) through multiple communication channels to
overcome disruptions and challenges brought by the COVID-19 pandemic
and ensure smooth and efficient cross-border enforcement cooperation in
retrieving audit working papers located in the Mainland. With the assistance
of the SEB, we received the audit working papers for 6 investigation cases
and have filed 8 requests for assistance.

We have established close collaboration with local regulators and
law enforcement agencies under the framework of memorandums of
understanding. We leveraged our collective powers and expertise to ensure
proper exchanges of intelligence and investigation findings and swift case
referrals for investigation and enforcement actions. We have had exchanges
with HKEX, SFC, ICAC and the Commercial Crime Bureau (CCB) of the Hong
Kong Police Force to discuss both case-specific and strategic matters.

Our complaints handling, investigation and enquiry functions are subjected
to review by the Process Review Panel (PRP) whose purview is to consider
whether actions taken by the AFRC on individual cases are consistent with
its internal procedures and guidelines. The 2021 Annual Report of the PRP
published in July 2022 covers, among other matters, the review of nine of
the 98 cases handled by the AFRC in 2020. The PRP concluded that we
had handled the cases in accordance with our internal procedures and made
recommendations for the enhancement of procedures/guidelines.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Statistics on operational performance

Operational statistics for Investigations and Enquiries (cases) and for
complaints, reports and referrals from which they have been sourced (sources)
are provided below for the year with comparatives for the previous year.

BN EFRRE

EERARTBT
TREHRAFERASREN (FZ) A SIRF - ]
EREN (REFESEIIRORR)) MEERE -
AR EFM B FE RO R -

2022-23 2021-22
2022-23% 2021-224F
Pursuable complaints, whistleblower reports and BRI IR - |BWARS
referrals received REEV 185 101
PIE auditors NEN B L ERD 114 101"
Professional persons BEALT 71 -
185 101
No. of financial statements selected for review EIERENI SRR EE 130 75
Investigations initiated RFEFAEMNER 72 32
Investigations completed FTERFAEREER 8 8
Enquiries initiated EHASMAEZE 17 14
Enquiries completed FTEAE A E SR 2 1

Complaints and referrals

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining the
appropriate action to be taken, i.e. to close it, refer it to another function, refer
it to other regulators or initiate an investigation or enquiry. During the reporting
period, we received a total of 918 complaints, of which 185 were pursuable
being taken further, 723 were pursuable but not taken further and the
remaining 10 were outside the remit of the AFRC, i.e. not involving auditing
misconduct committed by auditors or reporting accountants of listed entities
or non-compliance with accounting requirements in the financial reports of
listed entities, or misconduct and professional irregularities of professional
persons. The sources of which were as follows:

RFRBA

RBEEEMAEENTRIESH - WAEHETF
BEEETE  NERZEF  BEENETEM
BREESprY « BEENZHMETHERAFE
B o RIREHR - HMHEERIISRIEF - &
R E185%R A0 BREW IEHEVGE —251T8) » 7235R
AU RERSHRIE— 178 - B T10RTE
REU RS E®E NS & T E Ak
RSB RETAR T ER LT EERY
BRENGHIRTEENEEATRETANE
¥ETE1TR) - EIORAT ¢

PIE auditors Professional persons
AR R BRI EED BEXAL
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

2022-23%F  2021-224F  2022-23F  2021-224F

Complaints from: EFRA -
Members of the public /N7 YNan 54 24 40 -
Whistleblowers BmA 11 30 10 -
Referrals from: @y
HKEX BT 10 17 1 -
HKICPA EEGRNE 3 3 11 -
SFC HEw 3 7 3 -
Official Receiver BEEEEER - - 1 -
The Law Society of Hong Kong ~ &/& RIS - - 1 -
ICAC N - 2 - -
Other enforcement agencies H A HUEMAE = 2 1 -
Inspection BEERELFT 33 16 3 -
Total being taken further ESREUE — 21T RNV IR R 85T 114 101 71 -

1

Excluded 723 (2021-22: 163) pursuable complaints of a vexatious, abusive or

unreasonably persistent nature.

TEFET237R (2021-224F + 1635R) A] BRE AT
ZERFWEBETRE - BRERRF RAETRE
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We handled 253 complaints and referrals including 68 brought forward from
the previous period and the 185 pursuable complaints and referrals received
during the reporting period. As at 31 March 2023, 71 complaints and referrals
were still being evaluated.

BRPRANFEREEIRIEFREN  EhBE
68 R E—HIR B AV 4% 3 LA ) 185 R A ¥ 5 A
NEEM T REIRF REN - 7202343 A31
B ABIEEE7T RIHFREN -

2022-23 2021-22

2022-23F 2021-224F

Brought forward FHEREREEZR 68 29
Pursuable complaints received? EER) ] RIS 2 185 101

Completed with no follow-up action B MR ZIRERER (122) (31)

Initiated investigation or enquiry ERAGEMNESR (60) (31)
In progress at end of the year FRIHEEB R A fEZ 71 68

Pursuable complaints are completed with no follow-up action when there are
no circumstances identified that suggested that auditing misconduct or non-
compliance with accounting requirements had occurred based on our review
of the information available.

Sources of pursuable complaints

35 48 67 1012 1852
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2 Excluded 723 (2021-22: 163) pursuable complaints of a vexatious, abusive or

unreasonably persistent nature.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Category of listed entity auditor involved in complaints and referrals

100 7%
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35%
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58%
20

2018 Sept 2019 2019-21 2021-22 2022-23
20184 2019494 2019-214F 2021-224F 2022-23%F

Financial statements selected for review under FSRP
During the reporting period, we proactively reviewed the financial statements
of PIEs under our FSRP based on the following criteria:

Selection criteria HBEE

BN EFRRE

BRI KB R _ T E R EE R

. Category A firms
BRIAGETENTT

[ Category B firms
RIBE AT

. Category C firms
HERICE AT

RIERI B R B B ZETERBI B H*
RBEA - RPVLBI BRI FHERIENA
THRERGEHARN S ERBUHRE

2022 cycle 2021 cycle
2022F B 20214FBHA

Significant changes — Companies undertaking significant B A F A RI#EITEREEEE

changes in business activities or having significant SERRT - R R EEE

changes in business activities, financial positions and FEEREEHAT]

results 35% 24%
Market events — Financial statements with alleged MHSEHF-ERNFEREEY SR

non-compliance with accounting requirements and/ RABRETEN S REEH

or auditing irregularities based on media reports/ &/ REATETR WEZ

companies subject to intervention by HKEx (e.g. to AR A R (BINE KL

require the appointment of forensic accountant) — FEHAD) — BARME TS EMH

identified through our monitoring of market events JEEPEHETT R A 11% 9%
Prior year adjustments — Financial statements with BAFEAE(EHEXNBLAME

significant prior period adjustments other than those AR RR (REEFEBUR

reflecting a change in accounting policy or resulting BE) o E BN TR B I R S 2R

from an adoption of newly introduced financial i {EH B AR RSN

reporting standards 5% 1%
Modified auditor’s report — Financial statements with FEMREE R ZBMRE-AIE

modified auditor’s report where there are indications EREE BB SRS NI 5H

of auditing irregularities in prior year’s audit * BAPSRKBBRAFENSE

STHREATETR 2% 9%

Resignation of auditors due to unresolved audit issues ~ 1Z SR R ERNET BEBT

and successor auditor issued an unmodified audit REAZEREREREENE

opinion R 3% 3%
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

EENEFDRR

2022 cycle 2021 cycle
Selection criteria AR 2022F A 20214F A HA
Companies principally engaged in PRC property FEREFBEEHERES n/a
development or education sector HETERNRAT 30% TEA
Companies principally engaged in retail or tourism FERETENIREEBITEN n/a
related industries NG TEA 20%
Companies with late auditor resignation ZHEAMERBH R AR n/a
6% TEA
Auditors who take up PIE audit engagement for the first B /GETT AR S B2 TIE n/a
time RIAZEREM 8% T3 A
Companies having indicators of impairment of non- HIRIESREERBENR K5 n/a
financial assets and/or a going concern problem FEL AR AT TEA 23%
Financial statements prepared under Chinese REPE ST ERRRA n/a
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises Up RS TEA 1%
2022-23 2021-22
2022-234 2021-224F
In progress at the beginning of the year FEHFPHER 27 30
Financial statements selected during the reporting period ¥4 B & B9 81 #5 iRk 130 75
Completed with no follow-up action B MESZRENFEZR (78) (76)
Initiated investigation or enquiry RAAESKEANNER (11) @)
In progress at the end of the year FRIHEEBFHOMER 68 o7

12 investigations (2021-22: 2) were initiated from the FSRP reviews.

(2021-224F : 2R) »

REFERREMTIEMNRACEAEMEAR

Investigations B
PIE auditors Professional persons
DNRFE B R BEAL
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
2022-23%F 2021-22%F 2022-23%F 2021-22%F
In progress at the beginning of ~ FHIFEF A EZ%
the year 82 58 = -
Initiated in the year FRRAFENEZR 60 32 12 -
Handled during the year FEREENEZR 142 90 12 -
Completed B5ER (3) 8) () -
In progress at end of the year FRINEFAERNEZ 139 82 7 -
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BN EFRRE

We handled 82 investigations brought forward from the previous period, and ~ F{fiRIE#E F—HIREEHM82RFAE AR

respectively initiated 60 and 12 investigations concerning PIE auditors and ~$ ARFIE T EZHAMEEEA LD RIEFE0R

professional persons. We completed 8 investigations, 3 of which identified ~ M12RFAEEZE - HFICTHRSRAEEZE - Hp

auditing irregularities related to audits completed prior to 1 October 2019. SRWEIRGFAE2019F10 A1 BRI K NET B
BB TEITR -

Of the 146 investigations in progress at the end of the year, 26 cases involve ~ fEAREERKNEFHETN146RFHAEEERES - 26
audit working papers located in the Mainland (for ten of which, the audit  FEZW RFHAANMAET TIEER (HFP105R
working papers have been received from the MOF). Az W Rk B8 R E R TIEER) ©

Category of audit firms involved in investigations related to PIE engagements ~ B2018FRERFER T L ARFEETLEE M

(PIE related investigations) initiated in 2018 to the end of the year: AL (EARNEEEABNASES) T
585 -
2018 Sept 2019 2019-21 2021-22 2022-23

20184 201949 A 2019-214F 2021-22%F 2022-23F

Category A firms KERIAZFTRDTT 19 26 26 38 65
Category B firms $ERIBEFTANIT 19 12 22 33 50
Category C firms fERICEETENTT 5 4 10 11 24

43 42 58 82 139
Over the period since 2018, around half of our PIE related investigations ~ E20184#E » FHAFIA— L QAR FIZEE LR
involved audits by Category A firms. However, there is no overall trend in the & ¥ RIARIAESHEITTRIEST A ?ﬁ FAER
categories of firms that are subject to our investigations. AT R 2R EEBY -

During the reporting year, the HKICPA took regulatory actions in response to ~ MBREFE - BE LA ERRMNKREEE
eight investigations, which we had completed and referred to them in earlier ~ SERXIFAIEEN KSR ASARFMEETTE - W

years, as follows: T
2022-23 2021-22
2022-23% 2021-224F
Resolution by agreements (RBA) W RR 5 2
Disciplinary sanctions LERD 3 5
8 7

For the five cases completed under RBA, the relevant parties were publicly E¢5TEEEXE’JT§J ZRAERME AESHEW
reprimanded, ordered to pay an administrative penalty and required to  AFHRE @ WKE S XN1THIIZIARGEE S
reimburse the costs of the AFRC and the HKICPA. BEBEEGTRMAENER -
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For the three cases with disciplinary sanctions, there were significant
allegations, and the relevant parties were publicly reprimanded, ordered to
pay an administrative penalty ranging from HK$50,000 to HK$200,000 and
required to reimburse the costs of the AFRC and the HKICPA. In one case,
the practising certificate of the engagement director was ordered to be
cancelled, with no issuance of a practising certificate to him for six months.

Enquiries

We handled 16 enquiries brought forward from the previous year and initiated
17 enquiries during the reporting period. Two enquiries were completed and
31 enquiries are ongoing.

Amongst the 31 enquiries in progress, the two initiated during the reporting
period are being conducted by FRRC. The remaining 29 are being conducted
by the staff of the Department, under delegated powers from the Board.

The accounting issues of these enquiries included fair value measurement,
impairment of assets, going concern assessment and reporting, revenue
recognition, and recognition and measurement of financial instruments.

R-—FHEESERME @ B ROELRE
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2022-23 2021-22

2022-23%F 2021-224F

In progress at the beginning of the year REYIEMFAER 16 3
Initiated in the year FRRERMEMMERE 17 14
Completed FERENMER 2 M
In progress at end of the year FRIDEEMBEZR 31 16

Looking ahead

We will continue to enhance our processes and procedures so as to
discharge the expanded remit efficiently and effectively. We aim to create
positive ripple effects for the accountancy profession and the public by taking
prioritised, proportionate and risk-focused investigations into high-impact
cases; and increasing stakeholder engagement with the dissemination of
investigation outcomes.

In the coming year, we will continue to maintain the close and diverse
collaborations we have established with the local and Mainland regulators for
effective cross-sector and cross-border enforcement outcomes.
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Policy, Registration and Oversight

What we do and why

The Further Reform vests in us the power to license practising accountants
and to register their firms and corporate practices as practice units and
as auditors of listed entities. To more accurately reflect our significantly
expanded responsibilities, the Oversight, Policy and Governance Department
has been renamed as the Policy, Registration and Oversight Department. The
new name also succinctly articulates our priority in contributing to policy and
governance work and establishing AFRC as a credible and influential regulator
for the accounting profession.

BN EFRRE

BUR - s R EEE

BN ITHERBER
E—PERE TR NBEERE SRR R
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Our progress and achievements

Stakeholder Engagement

To better communicate with our stakeholders on who we are, what we do,
and what we mean for the profession, we introduced the AFRC’s expanded
regulatory functions at the “2022 CPD Carnival Day” jointly organised by The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (SCAA) and seven professional
accounting bodies in Hong Kong in November 2022. The event attracted
over 9,000 attendees. It was an interactive forum where we shared findings
and recommendations of our regulatory reports, exchanged views on issues
and challenges facing the profession and highlighted our forthcoming focuses
in the long-term sustainable development of the accounting profession.

ERRAR

BFRERE

REF AR MHERBEMNESE - THERSS
BEXNERETER  RMAN2022F11AESE
BEAGFHAATRLREXETHBE M
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The AFRC presents the topic of “AFRC — who we are, what we do, and what
it means for the profession” at 2022 CPD Carnival Day.
B RR2022FE A B X ERFEUGIB - RMAOEE - T
ERHETHEENERI ATBIEENZ -
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We hosted a series of seminars with various professional accounting
bodies namely, The Hong Kong Association of Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditors Limited (PIEAA), the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and SCAA to keep the profession abreast of the
registration and levy requirements and their respective registration and levy
collection processes under the new regime. These seminars attracted over
1,000 participants.

BAETRNEXGHEE (B BELTAR
EREHE  BEEHMAGREEEANGEH

RE)EWT —FINANE - BERTREFHE
THEMEBEREARERBNEMEBER
Fr o SR &R 51%1,0008 2 8 -

The AFRC presents to the members of SCAA on “AFRC Requirements and Procedures for
Registration of Practice Units”.

B RABEEEAGHMAGKEN G REREBLEMNZREEF]

We amplify the value and impact of our studies by organising briefing
sessions to explain our insights and recommendations to target stakeholders.
For example, we conducted briefing sessions to enhance the adoption of our
recommendations in “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees — Selection,
Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors”. Over 400 participants, many
of them directors, audit committee members, management of listed entities
and auditors, attended the briefings.

Policy and Governance

To establish our position as a thought leader in promoting quality financial
reporting and supporting the development of the accounting profession,
we conducted the following studies, the reports of which were published in
March 2023:

° Audit fees paid by listed companies in Hong Kong 2020/2021 -
a study relating to the trend of audit fees paid by listed companies in
Hong Kong.

The report aims to raise the transparency of the market and advance
the understanding of the relationship between audit fees and audit
quality, and provide insights into the implications of fee levels on the
sustainable development of the profession.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The study shows that average audit fees per engagement grew by 0.8%
on a nominal basis and declined by 0.2% on a CPIl-adjusted basis per
annum between 2010 and 2021. This indicates that audit pricing has
not kept pace with inflation. This may undermine audit quality.

2023 Survey Report on the Implementation of “Guidelines for
Effective Audit Committees - Selection, Appointment and
Reappointment of Auditors” (the Guidelines) — a survey report
to identify the effective implementation of the Guidelines since its
publication in December 2021.

The survey shows a mixed picture. On the one hand, the
implementation of the Guidelines has been slow, however, on a more
positive note, 97% of audit committee respondents agreed that they
play a pivotal role in overseeing audit quality. We recognise audit
committees may need time to digest and implement the Guidelines
effectively. Hence, we will continue to raise awareness and promote
and monitor the active adoption of the Guidelines.

BN EFRRE
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Our mission is to shape a healthy market environment that will nurture and
promote the success of the profession. Therefore, in both reports, we urge
key stakeholders, including auditors, audit committees, listed companies,
shareholders and investors to take concrete actions to improve the status
quo.

Dr Kelvin Wong, Chairman (middle), Mr Marek Grabowski, CEO (right) and Ms Mary
Leung, Head of Policy, Registration and Oversight (left) present to the media The Survey
Report and The Audit Fee Report.
BURERERGEL (P) BITBRARSE N EER) RECGR - dMREEBEIERRE
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We aim to identify issues that are within our purview on a timely basis and
respond in a nimble manner. One such example is the issue of late auditor
resignations and the wider issue of opinion shopping. As part of AFRC’s
wider effort in addressing this issue, we and the Inspection Department have
jointly published a follow-up open letter to auditors and audit committees
and reminded them of their obligations. An article was also published on
the Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) website to raise the
awareness of retail investors and the general public on this issue.

Registration and Licensing
During the reporting period, we have approved the following number of
applications,

Registration of practice units
B (7

Registration of local PIE auditors

A3 1N TR A 25 B R A% B A AL

Overseas entities applying for recognition o
overseas PIE auditors

BHNER P FERTRIND R S EEAEED

The first registration and renewal cycle under the new regime was
implemented smoothly. This seamless transition was achieved through the
development of application guides, a dedicated website with video tutorials,
an online system for processing applications, and communication tools via
hotline and webinars to handle enquiries.

We act as a gatekeeper to the audit profession with the ultimate objective of
ensuring the long-term sustainable development of the accounting profession.
Hence, we adopt a robust registration process to ensure that all applications
go through rigorous vetting procedures. In processing the applications,
we imposed conditions on the regulatees who had repeated breaches of
professional standards. They were required to complete additional training
to upskill their professional competence, which was necessary to protect the
public interest from subpar audit quality.

The year 2023 marks the 50" anniversary of the issuance of practising
certificates to accounting professionals in Hong Kong. 26 practising certificate
holders have held their certificates for 50 years. These pioneers brought
dedication, commitment and professionalism to the profession and are integral
to Hong Kong’s development as an international financial centre. Their success
also provides a strong motivation for aspiring accounting professionals.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

To celebrate the golden jubilee of these certificate holders, we hosted a tea
reception on 2 March 2023 to commemorate this milestone.

BN EFRRE
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The AFRC hosts a celebratory reception in March 2023 to commemorate the

50th anniversary of the practising certificates.

S RN2023FIARPENE « L BEREZFERF -

Oversight

Since October 2019, we have been overseeing the HKICPA’s performance of
certain statutory functions, including registration of and setting of ethics and
audit-related standards, as well as continuing professional development (CPD)
requirements for auditors of local listed entities.

Being the only statutory accountancy body in Hong Kong, the HKICPA plays
an important role in upholding and raising the standards of the profession.
In discharging our oversight functions over the HKICPA, we aim to provide
guidance and recommendations to the HKICPA that will ensure a high degree
of transparency, accountability, and integrity, all of which will contribute
towards our goal of protecting the public interest and enhancing public
confidence in financial reporting in Hong Kong. To this end, we published
our third report on oversight with our recommendations to the HKICPA in
November 2022.
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The AFRC presents to the media the 2022 Oversight Report on HKICPA’s

Performance of the Specified Functions.
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Under the Further Reform, the functions of the HKICPA that are subject to our
oversight have been broadened to cover the following:

° ascertaining the qualification for registration as certified public
accountants (CPAs) by conducting examinations;

° registering CPASs;

° arranging for mutual or reciprocal recognition of accountants;

° setting CPD requirements for CPAs;

° issuing or specifying standards on professional ethics, and accounting,
auditing and assurance practices for CPAs; and

° providing training for qualifying as, and the CPD of, CPAs.

To bring greater clarity and transparency to our oversight function, we signed
a Revised Statement of Protocol on Oversight Arrangement with the HKICPA
on 16 August 2022.

RE-—THFED  RMAEBEEESIMISHR
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The AFRC and the HKICPA sign a Revised Statement of Protocol on Oversight Arrangement.
B REFEESHMAREZ(ECIEERHHHER) -

We have also commenced the walkthrough assessment in March 2023 to
better understand our broadened regulatory oversight functions. We will
also review the progress of the HKICPA'’s follow-up actions on our previous
findings and assess their effectiveness in protecting the interest of the public as
part of our annual assessment.
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Number of meetings of the HKICPA’s committees obs

UBREGHHEREEMASZSEERAN

Number of HKICPA'’s periodic reports reviewed

EEHEESTMATEHNREOH

The 3rd oversight report published on 15 November2
R2022F 11 A15E R M E=HEERS

Looking ahead

We will continue to convey our regulatory expectations and requirements
effectively and understand the needs and concems of the profession through
proactive stakeholder engagement. This would enable us to provide useful
guidance and timely support to the profession as well as influence and shape
the behaviours of our regulatees and other stakeholders.
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Discipline

What we do and why

The Discipline Department is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the AFRC. We will take appropriate and timely disciplinary actions
in cases of misconduct by imposing commensurate sanctions for the
purposes of deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in
the quality of financial reporting and audits, and upholding standards.

The discipline function plays a pivotal role in promoting a culture of
accountability and upholding proper standards of conduct amongst
regulatees, thereby enhancing the quality and reliability of future audits.
This in turn supports the AFRC’s mission of spearheading and leading the
accounting profession and raising the quality of professional accountants,
and protecting the public interest.
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*_Guiding principles

Our progress and achievements

Significant progress has been made by the Discipline Department in the first
half of the reporting period in preparing its readiness to handle disciplinary
cases. Policies and guidelines relating to the disciplinary process and
sanctions approach were established and have now been fully implemented
following an extensive consultation and engagement exercise between March
and June 2022. With the expansion of its remit under the Further Reform,
the Discipline Department has commenced the handling of disciplinary
cases relating to both PIE auditors and registered responsible persons, and
professional persons. The team has tripled in size from a headcount of six to
19 to handle the increasing caseload.
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Consultation on disciplinary process and sanctions
approach

One of our notable achievements during the reporting period is the successful
delivery of the engagement and consultation exercise relating to the disciplinary
process and sanctions approach, and as part of the Further Reform. Since
the Government announced the Further Reform of the accounting profession
in June 2021, the AFRC has held around 50 meetings, webinars and media
interviews with relevant stakeholders including regulatees, users of financial
statements, the general public and other regulators.

During an 8-week consultation between March and May 2022, the Discipline
Department conducted a series of engagement meetings with a wide range
of stakeholders to explain our proposals and exchange our views regarding
our proposed disciplinary process and principle-based sanctions approach. In
particular, the 10 webinars conducted in March and April 2022 were attended
by over 6,000 participants. Responses to the engagement programme were
generally positive.
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AFRC engages with stakeholders to explain its proposals and views regarding the disciplinary
process and sanctions approach in April 2022.
H2022F48 - EMBEFHESH - BEENCEENEF R

At the close of the consultation, we received 20 written submissions
from a broad range of respondents comprising audit firms/representative
associations, professional bodies, listed company directors, users of financial
statements and other local regulators/legislators. The majority of respondents
showed overall support for the regulatory principles behind our proposals.

In late June 2022, we published our Consultation Conclusions and held
a press briefing. After considering the feedback, we made appropriate
amendments to the disciplinary guidance documents and further clarified
the intent and practical aspects of our proposed policies and processes.
The relevant disciplinary policies and guidelines applicable to PIE auditors
and registered responsible persons came into effect after the release of the
Consultation Conclusions, whereas those applicable to professional persons
took effect after the commencement of the Further Reform.
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We believe in the importance of dialogue and communication to facilitate
stakeholders to understand our regulatory principles and solicit their views to
ensure our policies meet the expectations of the public through an effective
regulatory regime. The consultation reflects the AFRC’s commitment to
improving transparency, efficiency and effectiveness of regulation through
stakeholders’ engagement.

BPAEHRESENERN  UEERSNET
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Consultation Conclusions on

(iy Qutline of the AFRC’s Disciplinary Process

(i)  Guidelines for Exercising the Power to Impose:
a Pecuniary Penalty for PIE Auditors and
Registered Responsible Persons

(i) Guidelines for Exersising the Power to Impose:
a Pecuniary Penalty for Professional Persons

{iv) Sanctions Policy for PIE Auditors and
Registered Responsible Persons

(v)  Sanctions Policy for Professional Persons

23 Jure 2022

AFRC holds a press briefing to release the Consultation Conclusions on 23 June 2022.
S RH 202296 A 23 B 1T A g M K 4k -

Apart from policies and guidelines, we completed our internal Operations
Manual in August 2022 to provide procedural guidance to staff on the
handling of disciplinary cases. The Discipline Committee has also been set
up to advise the Board on matters concerning the disciplinary function and
provide oversight.

With our established disciplinary policies and procedures, we started handling
disciplinary cases relating to PIE auditors and registered responsible persons
since November 2022, and cases relating to professional persons since
February 2023. In the spirit of transparency, and in line with the practices
of other local financial regulators, we will publish our disciplinary decisions
on our website in the form of press releases and statements of disciplinary
action when available. This will provide application guidance of our regulatory
principles to specific factual scenarios and enable our regulatees and the
public to better understand our regulatory approach and objectives in a fair
and transparent manner.

Looking ahead

We will exercise the full spectrum of our regulatory powers to uphold
high standards of professional conduct. In doing so, we will take firm and
appropriate disciplinary actions that are proportionate to the misconduct to
create ripple effects in our regulatory work.
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As the independent auditor regulator of the accounting profession in Hong
Kong, the AFRC must demonstrate that we act impartially, transparently,
and with integrity and proficiency. The Legal Department advises the Board
on all legal and ethical related matters, covering not only regulatory functions
but also corporate governance arrangements and compliance with laws and
regulations.

We also provide legal advice for the effective discharge of our regulatory activities
and initiatives. To that end, we work closely with other functional departments to
understand their strategic and operational issues in order to identify and manage
any legal risks, and provide day-to-day legal support for the achievement of their
departmental objectives and the AFRC’s strategic development as a whole.
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Further Reform

The Further Reform of the accounting profession continued to take priority
in our work for the better part of the review period. The enactment of the
amended legislation in October 2021 was followed by the preparation of
subsidiary legislation to provide for detailed transitional arrangements for
AFRC’s assumption of the new statutory functions in respect of the accounting
profession. We worked closely with internal stakeholders, the Financial Services
and the Treasury Bureau (FSTB) and the HKICPA in understanding the practical
operations of the new functions and the legal and practical implications for the
transition, in order to work out a set of arrangements to pave the way for a
smooth transition and avoid disruption for the profession.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

We reviewed and identified potential issues and gaps in the draft subsidiary
legislation, and maintained a close liaison with FSTB and the Department of
Justice to assist in the finalisation of the subsidiary legislation. The final version
was gazetted on 6 May 2022 and the legislative process was completed on 6
July 2022,

Critical to the success of the transition was the commencement of the
registration and licensing functions of the Policy, Registration and Oversight
Department (PRO), in particular the annual renewal of registrations by
the entire profession from October to December of each year, a period of
intensive work for PRO. We worked closely with and provided legal support
to PRO to ensure all necessary forms and documentation are in place, ready
for the launch of those functions on 1 October 2022.

We continued to support the Regulatory Reform Committee in its work in
assisting the Board in its oversight of the AFRC’s preparation for the reform,
by coordinating with other departments in the preparation of policies and
guidance for the new functions for the purpose of review by the Committee.

We undertook the review of important internal legal and governance related
policies for the purpose of the implementation of the Further Reform. The
amendment of the legal provisions on conflict of interest under the new
section 53 of the AFRCO required a new conflict of interest policy applicable
to the staff and any person performing a function for the AFRC. The work
started in the previous review period and continued until June 2022 when the
draft was completed which received Board approval in August. Thereafter,
we revised the declaration of interest form for use as from 1 October 2022.

With the addition of new functions came the need to review our existing
delegation of powers, in order to assimilate the new functions into the existing
delegation and oversight structure. The revised delegation of powers was
completed and approved in August 2022.

From April to October 2022, we also reviewed a number of other policies
including AFRC’s codes of conduct for Board members and staff members,
our privacy policy and data privacy related documentation, as well as access
to information policy.

One of the contributions of the amended AFRCO to AFRC’s corporate
governance is the establishment of an Advisory Committee which consists
of representatives of various stakeholder sectors appointed by the Financial
Secretary, in addition to the Chairman and CEO of the AFRC, for the purpose
of providing advice to the AFRC on matters of policy regarding its functions
and regulatory objectives. We have been providing support to the Advisory
Committee since its inception.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The review period saw the signing of a memorandum of understanding with
the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force (HKPF) on 16
September 2022. The new MoU marked a new chapter in the collaboration
between the parties in combatting crime and llicit activities in relation to
financial reporting and audit quality of listed companies and other business
entities, in an effort to maintain the integrity and fairness of the capital market
in Hong Kong as an international financial centre and to enhance public
confidence in the accounting profession in Hong Kong.
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lemorandum o
Signing C

16" Septembe

AFRC signs MoU with HKPF to enhance collaboration in upholding the integrity and fairness of the financial

market.
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In tandem with our IT division’s ongoing enhancement of AFRC’s IT systems,
we will embark on a review of AFRC’s information governance and data
and IT security policies and implementation in the coming financial year. The
project is expected to involve cross-departmental coordination both at the
policy and implementation level, to keep abreast of our internal technological
development.

As part of the ongoing IT development of different aspects of our operations
including our case management system, we will be digitising our declaration
of interest forms to facilitate our declaration process.

After two rounds of significant reforms in recent years, the AFRC will also
be looking ahead to further collaboration with international regulators and
the Legal Department will take a significant role in the development of our
international relations and our position on the international stage.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFER

Corporate Functions

What we do and why

Our corporate functions manage the availability, quality, security and efficient
use of our key resources — our facilities, people, information technology and
financial resources — and enhance our stakeholder engagement through the
effective delivery of our corporate communications and events.
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Our progress and achievements

Achieving the desired outcomes from our corporate functions depends
critically on the successful establishment and implementation of appropriate
policies and procedures. With the growth and expansion of our functions
under the Further Reform, our policies and procedures have been a key focus
of our corporate functions in the review year.

People

AFRC has doubled its headcount to 115 through a robust recruitment
exercise. Possessing different expertise and vast experience, our staff work in
“One Team One Culture” to discharge duties diligently and effectively.
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On top of this, AFRC has been endeavouring to leverage training, appraisal
and promotion policies and procedures to uplift our staff in terms of

competitiveness, professionalism and perseverance.

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BN EFRRE

o e R—BEEREI - FERETBER
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AFRC invites trainers to enhance interview techniques of its staff.
e REFEEIABRSHEEINEMET -

Information Technology

During the reporting period, we have adopted the Registration and License
System that has been used by the HKICPA to ensure a seamless transition of

the registration functions from HKICPA to the AFRC.

To further enhance our efficiency and achieve synergy across different
functions and departments, we have formulated strategies and plans to

enhance our IT systems development.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

Corporate Communications #igEm

To introduce our new corporate identity as the independent regulator of the ANBRRFIEA S EEB Y EETHENTA
accounting profession, we conducted a rebranding exercise. The AFRC & - #7177 MR EB T2 - 120229929
Launch Ceremony was staged on 29 September 2022 whereby we launched B E{TH S8 BRENHE - HFIER T KA
our new logo that symbolises the ripple effects we create and the new  EEAERERFIZFELRITOEBER - BFTE
corporate video. We also strengthened relationships with our stakeholders @/ M FTHE R e 2 E L0 ENRE - M
through events and media briefings so as to promote our regulatory initiatives ~ {E#EFMAIELE TIEMARE °

and outcomes.

LAUNCH CEREMONY
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
29 SEPTEMBER 2022

AIrRC

Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council
B RMBERS

AIFRC i
i Al L i?f
B :

P
N !‘m m Ay

=1y

The AFRC Launch Ceremony on 29 September 2022 attracts over 350 guests. #3504 52 & HF 1202269 A20 H 1T € B BRREH 442 o
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Date B A

4 Apr 2022
2022F4 A48

4 Apr 2022
2022F 448
6 Apr 2022
20224 A6H
7 Apr 2022
2022F4A7H
11 Apr 2022

20224118

12 Apr 2022
202244 F12R

13 Apr 2022
202294 413H

20 Apr 2022
202244 A20H

21 Apr 2022
202254 H21H

21 Apr 2022

20224218

25 Apr 2022
202244 A25H

26 Apr 2022
2022F4 A 26H
23 Jun 2022

202246 H23H

5 Aug 2022
202248 A5H

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Major events held

Hong Kong Institute of Directors (HKloD) webinar on
Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

HKICPA and Hong Kong Association of Registered Public
Interest Entity Auditors Limited (PIEAA) joint webinar on
Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

CPA (Australia) webinar on Further Reform of the
Accounting Profession

HKICPA and The Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors (SCAA) Joint Webinar on Further Reform of the
accounting profession

HKICPA webinar on Further Reform of the accounting
profession

PIEAA webinar on Further Reform of the accounting
profession

Hong Kong Business Accountants Association (HKBAA)
and The Association of Hong Kong Accountants (AHKA)
webinar on Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

Accountancy Caring Alliance Limited (ACA) and
Accounting Development Foundation (ADF) webinar on
Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (CA
ANZ) Hybrid Meeting on Further Reform of the Accounting
Profession

The Hong Kong Association of Banks (HKAB) Hybrid
Meeting on Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)
webinar on Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

Meeting with The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association (HKINEDA) on Further Reform of the

Accounting Profession

Press briefing on Consultation Conclusions and the 2021
Annual Inspection Report

Webinar on Annual Inspection Report 2021 for audit firms
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Date HA

12 Aug 2022
202258 H12H

15 Aug 2022
20224F8 A15H

16 Aug 2022
202248H16H

23 Aug 2022
202248 H23H

16 Sep 2022
2022 9H16H

16 Sep 2022
20224F9A16H

26 Sep 2022
202299 H26H

30 Sep 2022
202249 H30H

10 Oct 2022
2022F10A10H

12 Oct 2022
20224F10H12H

20 Oct 2022
2022910 A20H

15 Nov 2022
202211 A15H

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFER

Major events held
Webinar on Annual Inspection Report 2021 for HKICPA

Webinar on Annual Inspection Report 2021 for PIEAA

Signed Revised Statement of Protocol on Oversight
Arrangement with HKICPA

Webinar on Annual Inspection Report 2021 for ACCA

Signed MoU with the Hong Kong Police Force

Briefing and reception for the Financial Reporting Review
Panel

Seminar on AFRC registration and renewal process for
PIEAA

AFRC Launch Ceremony

Seminar on AFRC registration and renewal process for
HKICPA

Seminar on AFRC registration and renewal process for
SCAA

Press briefing on 2022 Annual Investigation and
Compliance Report

Press briefing on 2022 Interim Inspection Report and
Report on Oversight of HKICPA regulatory functions

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BN EFRRE

Date B A Major events held FEEH

2 Mar 2023 Celebratory reception to commemorate the 50th anniversary — Z2 i a8 BB St BE A T EBERHE

202343 H2H of the issuance of practising certificates to accounting ~ EZ50EFHEMEES
professionals in Hong Kong

24 Mar 2023 Press briefing on the Audit Fee Report and 2023 Survey B BB A RS HEERE %2023

2023%F3H24H Report on the implementation of Guidelines for Effective it (BT L B @B BCEEES) EHls
Audit Committees AEESAERE

On-going Regular meetings with regulators EEE BN TR

FIEHETT e Sharing on common issues and fostering close o HEEE FEIXHF - BEEE

collaboration with SFC, HKEX, HKICPA and ICAC. A RRRAED ZHRAMTE
BREEEFESE -
Publications H R T4

We communicate key regulatory issues and our latest developments with our
stakeholders and the public via our publications. During the reporting period,
we published 3 issues of our quarterly reports and 33 press releases. Monthly
operations statistics about complaints, investigations and enquiries covering
the review period were also published on our website.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
BT EERWE

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council set out on pages 81 to 109, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council as at
31 March 2023, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audiitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Other information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information included in
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s 2023 Annual Report, other
than the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Responsibilities of the Accounting and Financial

Reporting Council for the financial statements

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and section
18(2) of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing
the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
EIEERRS

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council;

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going concern; and

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

Terry Mok Audit Commission

Assistant Director of Audit (Acting) 6th Floor, High Block

for Director of Audit Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway

1 June 2023 Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CYpIE RS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME mERAR
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZ=2023F3A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
Note
M E 2023 2022
Income WA
Levy income HBRA 4 150,649,567 36,053,631
Grant income EEULON 5 37,073,329 67,663,613
Application fee income BREEARA 6 28,550 21,750
Recovery of costs of investigations FERK AR [E] 6 1,125,641 1,243,573
Interest income FEMA 7 4,161,874 1,116,839
193,038,961 106,099,406
Expenditure * i
Staff costs BIMA 89 (130,093,706) (73,636,300)
Non-executive directors’ emoluments IERITESHE 9 (3,240,000) (3,360,000)
Premises expenses LES-3u] 10 (5,159,559) (2,222,228)
Corporate communications expenses HREERZ N 11 (4,620,907) (841,313)
Legal and professional fees FREREEBA (43,837) (1,671,818)
Interest on lease liabilities HESERE 15 (643,238) (1,395,226)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - REREM 14 (6,360,185) (2,947,628)
- Right-of-use assets —RAEEE 15 (15,508,008) (9,448,088)
— Intangible asset —EmEEE 16 (196,000) (196,000)
Other operating expenses HhiE 12 (9,099,866) (2,959,596)
(174,965,306) (98,678,197)
Surplus and total comprehensive FRBEHRK
income for the year HWERS A 18,073,655 7,421,209
The notes on pages 85 to 109 form part of these financial statements. F858 £109BE MM AAM BT —25 °
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2023

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR R
202343A31H
(BB TLIIR)

Note
FEE 2023 2022
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BB REIM 14 9,062,164 11,261,613
Right-of-use assets REEE 15 6,461,670 21,969,678
Intangible asset mEE 16 359,333 555,333
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 15,883,167 33,786,624
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments ~ 1%4& - FEUBR FX & FE {7008 17 37,524,732 26,553,530
Time deposits with original maturities REIBIEZHR=EAH
over three months TEHATF R 18 12,500,000 225,250,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReZEEY 19 258,442,334 56,128,621
Total current assets REEELE 308,467,066 307,932,151
Current liabilities nREIEE
Accounts payable, accruals and ERARR - FEETER KR
other liabilities EMmEE 20 (10,009,361) (9,248,115)
Deferred income IEIEUTA 21 (159,763,673) (89,095,967)
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 (7,046,290) (15,719,820)
Provision for reinstatement cost BIR TRER A BHE 22 (3,690,000) -
Total current liabilities mEIEERAE (180,509,324) (114,063,902)
Net current assets REEEFE 127,957,742 193,868,249
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income IEEYA 21 (69,532,569) (160,683,898)
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 - (7,046,290)
Provision for reinstatement cost ER TR A BHE 22 - (3,690,000)
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE (69,532,569) (171,420,188)
Net assets EEFHE 74,308,340 56,234,685
Funds =2
General fund —RE® 23 74,308,340 56,234,685
Total funds BEe 74,308,340 56,234,685

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 1 June 2023

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP EZX#{EL » REFEE - AF# L

Chairman /&

The notes on pages 85 to 109 form part of these financial statements.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
I 2815 2020-235 %

R2023%F6 A1 BEE = Bt MIRE T3
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

Ze LIE:
HZE2023F3A31HILEE
(£EABTIIR)

General fund

—RES
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H81H 48,813,476
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year FRABRBEEEIA 7,421,209
At 31 March 2022 7202243 A31H 56,234,685
At 1 April 2022 20224451 A 56,234,685
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year FRABRBEREIA 18,073,655
At 31 March 2023 72023F3H31H 74,308,340

The notes on pages 85 to 109 form part of these financial statements.
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BRI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZ=2023F3A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
Note
LiEss 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities E&FZBHELENRESHE
Surplus for the year FREH 18,073,655 7,421,209
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation e R 22,064,193 12,591,716
Interest income FEA (4,161,874) (1,116,839
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 643,238 1,395,226
36,619,212 20,291,312
Changes in working capital: HEESEE
Increase in deposits, receivables e EUWERR
and prepayments SEURES Iﬁi“ﬂﬂ (10,139,348) (21,919,143)
Increase in accounts payable, JERTERR - FERTEA R
accruals and other liabilities H A & &N 1,234,788 1,999,168
Decrease in deferred income BEEW AR D (20,483,623) (41,129,646)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KETHELENRS
operating activities RN (R F5E 7,231,029 (40,758,309)
Cash flows from investing activities ?x’ﬁxﬁibi*iﬂ’ﬁﬁ%muz
Payment for the purchase of property,  EBE % - & L EM B
plant and equipment (4,634,278) (1,709,974)
Interest received BUFILE 3,330,020 1,990,171
Decrease in time deposits with original ~ RR/HEZ R =AY
maturities over three months BT ROR 212,750,000 87,750,000
Net cash inflow from investing activities IR &SRB EE MR ERAEER 211,445,742 88,030,197
Cash flows from financing activites = BEZHELMRESRE
Lease payments HERK (16,363,058) (9,640,439)
Net cash outflow from financing RMETEELENRESR
activities (16,363,058) (9,640,439)
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEY
equivalents BnFEEE 202,313,713 37,631,449
Cash and cash equivalents at MAB1ENERERBSEEY
1 April 56,128,621 18,497,172
Cash and cash equivalents at MIASIHNWE S RESEEY
31 March 19 258,442,334 56,128,621
The notes on pages 85 to 109 form part of these financial statements. F858 £1090BE MM AN BT —29 °
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W AR TR EE
HZE2023F3A31HILEE
(£EABTIIR)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

General Information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC), formerly known
as the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), was established in Hong Kong
in 2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588)
(FRCOQ). Its office address is 24th Floor and 43rd Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

Under the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance 2019,
the FRC has become a full-fledged independent oversight body, and is
responsible for the inspection, investigation and disciplinary functions
with regard to public interest entities (PIE) auditors, recognition of
overseas auditors and the oversight of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ (HKICPA's) performance of registration,
setting of standards on professional ethics, auditing and assurance, and
setting of continuing professional development requirements in relation
to PIE auditors. Its power to make enquiries into non-compliance with
accounting requirements by listed entities in Hong Kong continues.

On 8 June 2021, the Government announced a further reform of
the accounting profession and consequential changes to the FRC’s
functions under the FRCO. The FRC (Amendment) Bill 2021 (“Bill”)
was published on 16 July 2021 to further develop the FRC into a full-
fledged independent regulatory body for the accounting profession. The
Bill was passed by the Legislative Council on 22 October 2021 as the
Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance 2021 (“Amendment
Ordinance 20217).

—RER

iRV BKERRD (EHMRE) - BIETEER
RF2006 5 1R 1R <81 75 & 3 B 14 51) (55588
B)ERBKYL - EMERIIEAE ARG
RIEFR 18357 A I 02418 431 ©

FEEH
RIECO19F M IBER B (ER]) 5HI) - BF
BERBRATEBUEERE  AFTHAN
BHNEERZEEETER BENLER
7 RAFIMEMEEREEGHNAE
WITAREM - EXERE - RERZER
FREARERE - URHARNEEBZE
EMEOFHE R B RERE B RABE - AR
BERBEELTERBTENETRENEER
FEAES -

M2021F6A8H ' BINEM ST HEEMNE
— kB R EERBR (IS ERBIEG)D
TEBEMIREEE) - BIISIERFMN202147 A
16 B 27 (2021 F B KB B (1EF]) 561D
BR([ER])  E— T BUBERRERE
RAEZEMBYMS A EEREHEE -
HRPW2021F10A22B EBILEAS BB A
(20214 B B EE ] B (£ 3]) 1&B1) ([20214F
ERTIEBI) -
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2. Principal Activities (continued)
Under the Amendment Ordinance 2021 which took effect as from
1 October 2022, certain regulatory powers vested with the HKICPA
have been transferred to the AFRC and other functions that continue to
be discharged by the HKICPA have been put under the oversight of the

AFRC (“Further Reform”), as follows:

Empower the AFRC to issue practising certificates to Certified
Public Accountants (CPAs) and to register CPA firms, corporate

practices and PIE auditors;

i. Expand the AFRC’s current powers of inspection, investigation
and discipline over PIE auditors to cover inspection of CPAs
(Practising) practising accountancy on their own account in their
own names, CPA firms and corporate practices (“Practice Units”)
and investigation and discipline of CPAs and Practice Units; and

ii. Expand the AFRC’s oversight powers to cover the HKICPA’s

remaining functions of:

- registering CPAs;

— arranging for mutual or reciprocal recognition of accountants
with accountancy bodies outside Hong Kong;

- setting requirements for continuing professional development

(CPD) for CPAs;

- issuing or specifying standards on professional ethics, and
accounting, auditing and assurance practices, for CPAs; and

- providing training for qualifying for registration as, and CPD

of, CPAs.

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (Transitional and Saving
Provisions and Consequential Amendments) Regulation completed
its negative vetting by the Legislative Council in July 2022, providing
for the legislative transitional arrangements for the Further Reform and
consequential amendments to other legislation.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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ascertaining whether persons are qualified for registration as
CPAs by conducting examinations;
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(@)

(b)

()

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the AFRC.

Following the Further Reform, the AFRC will need further funding
to make up for its projected cash shortfall from April 2024. The
Government and the AFRC will explore new funding sources and further
address the long-term funding mechanism of the AFRC. Management
assessed the circumstances and determined that there is no material
uncertainty relating to the AFRC’s ability to continue as a going concemn.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of IFRSs by the AFRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year presentation of the financial statements.

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the AFRC did not adopt any new
or revised IFRSs.

The AFRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant financial
impact on the AFRC’s financial statements.

(@)

(b)

()
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Levy Income

2023 2022
Transaction levy RBHE 87,040,639 27,225,210
PIE levy NEFZERSE 32,025,867 7,924,196
PIE Auditor levy NEF R E R ZENHE 31,583,061 904,225

150,649,567 36,053,631

Starting from 1 January 2022, the AFRC is self-financing for the existing
PIE functions, with funding from levies payable by sellers and purchasers
of securities, PIEs and PIE Auditors. A Government grant (note 5) had
been received to fund the operations of the AFRC for the first 27 months
(i.e. up to 31 December 2021) after the implementation with expanded
functions effective from 1 October 2019 (“New Regime”), during which
the new levies were exempted.

From 1 January 2022, the transaction levy and PIE levy are collected
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) on behalf of
the AFRC. The AFRC recognises transaction levy when the leviable
transactions occur based on the consideration for the sale and purchase
by the seller and purchaser of securities each at a rate of 0.00015% of
the consideration. The transaction levy receivable is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the leviable transactions
occur. Amounts recognised are determined based on returns provided
to the AFRC by SEHK. The AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a
PIE for a calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that the levy
will be received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The PIE
levy is required under the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance (AFRCO), formerly known as the FRCO, to be calculated at
4.2% of the prepaid annual listing fee as determined by the SEHK. A
reliable estimate of the levy receivable from a PIE can be made when
it has been determined by the SEHK and communicated to the AFRC.
The PIE levy income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year to which it relates.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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Levy Income (continued)

The levy for Recognized PIE Auditors are collected directly by the
AFRC. Before 1 October 2022, the levy for Registered PIE Auditors
were collected by the HKICPA on behalf of the AFRC. After 1 October
2022, the levy for Registered PIE Auditors are collected directly by the
AFRC. The AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor for
a calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that the levy will be
received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The levy receivable
from a PIE Auditor is required under the AFRCO to be calculated based
on:

the number of PIEs for which the PIE Auditor is carrying out,
as at 31 December of the preceding calendar year, a Specified
Engagement as defined in the AFRCO, at HK$6,155 per
engagement (or a minimum levy of HK$2,000 if there are no
Specified Engagements); and

ii. 0.147% of the total remuneration paid to the PIE Auditor, in the
preceding calendar year, by the PIEs for which the PIE Auditor
carried out Specified Engagements.

A reliable estimate of the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor can be
made when a return of Specified Engagements and payments received
from PIEs in the calendar year has been received by the AFRC from the
PIE Auditor. The PIE Auditor levy income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year
to which it relates.

Grant Income
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2023 2022

ERREDEA

Recognised as grant income

In August 2019, the AFRC received a grant of HK$400 million from the
Government to be utilised, during the period of migration to the New
Regime, to cushion the AFRC against short-term fluctuations in the levy
income, to fund one-off capital and non-recurrent expenses, to allow
the AFRC to gradually expand its manpower taking into account its
actual operational needs, and to provide a buffer for other exigencies
of circumstances. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to the grant.

37,073,329 67,663,613

R2019%8 A &R RN IBIEEHHEHIF
BBFWER— B ANAETER) - W&
T RBERANERRE - BN R
BeMFERESL ZeMREEERE
REEFEREZSEMATFRAEMBERS
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SEMAEIA
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5. Grant Income (continued)
Before the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the
grant is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position initially and is recognised as income on a systematic basis in
the statement of comprehensive income over the periods in which the
AFRC recognises as expenses the related costs, including depreciation
on capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Upon the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the
depreciation on capital expenditure incurred was recognised as
income over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments, for which the grant is intended to compensate. The
Government grant is also used for Non-PIE functions related to the
Further Reform announced by the Government on 8 June 2021.

6. Application Fee Income and Recovery of Costs

of Investigations

Application fee income is recognised at a point in time on completion of
the application service upon which an auditor is registered or recognised
as a PIE auditor by the AFRC.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the disciplinary
decision becomes finalised and received by the AFRC.

7. Interest Income
Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

8. Staff Costs

EEHRA (&)

E2022F1 A1BBEBERA] - ZELMNE
BIRRKRVTERBELTWRA - RSB
RN (RIEEARZ BITE) BRAZ
WEIRREL S WA RIZ ZFEERR AR
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AXITEERBEEENBRERFHNIRSE
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BB E - 202166 ASH KN = i —
HNE  ZELHMARIEATRFIRZE LR

akb
BE °

REEARARAERARE

RNV RN ERTRARNAE
BZHENR - PEEARNPERBTAERE
RPN -

B SR —EHE RS B E%E
B GHHER -

FEUA

MBWAK A E M FR R FEEFR - TR
AR BRI FRIZ BT EEMER -

BT A

2023 2022

Salaries, variable pay and bonuses R 2 ENE R AEAL 113,538,608 64,944,780
MPF contributions EHIERTESER 5,080,878 2,379,547
Staff recruitment expenses HEETH W 8,044,275 4,294,758
Medical and life insurance BRERASRRE 2,112,994 1,392,141
Staff training and development B TN RE 405,993 160,699
Others Hib 910,958 464,375
130,093,706 73,636,300
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Staff Costs (continued)

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued in
the period in which the employees rendered the associated services.
Bonuses are recognised when the AFRC has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made
based on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the AFRC, in an
independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for
the employer additional voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the AFRC if an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, subject to vesting scale of the MPF Scheme.

The above staff costs included the emoluments of the executive
directors (including the CEQ) as stated in note 9.

The Government has launched the Job Creation Scheme (JCS)
under the Anti-epidemic Fund to create time-limited jobs to relieve
the unemployment situation due to the epidemic and anti-epidemic
measures. The AFRC has received a subsidy of $294,798 (2022:
$1,587,879) from the JCS during the year ended 31 March 2023 and
the subsidy was applied towards the payroll costs of additional staff for
the time-limited positions for the period from April 2022 to May 2022.
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9. Directors’ Emoluments 9. EEM=
2023
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay contributions Total
SR
EEHS £ FaMe  ARESHER ]
Executive Director HTES
Marek Grabowski, CEO 5N THER - 4,122,504 582,000 - 4,704,504
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Charman & &4 * SREFIES -
AFat ¥F 840,000 - - - 840,000
Roger Best, MH, JP pmE  REHE - AFHL 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC BT BRKEA 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung FEfE 240,000 - - = 240,000
Miranda Kwok, JP FRF - KFET 240,000 - - - 240,000
Rosita Lee Zmi 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Lee FRE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Keith Lui ERE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Francis Siu RER 240,000 - - - 240,000
Peter Wan, MH FIE  REHE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Edward Yuen e 4 240,000 - - - 240,000
3,240,000 - - - 3,240,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEZHE 3,240,000 4,122,504 582,000 - 7,944,504
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B R
Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 9. EEME®W®
2022
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay  contributions Total
5 il
EE i M FEME NESHT fat]
Executive Directors HITES
Marek Grabowski, CEO BN 1THEH, - 4,122,504 679,000 20,501 4,822,005
Florence Wong ! TEE - 1,862,500 429,923 114,621 2,407,044
- 5,985,004 1,108,923 135,122 7,229,049
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Charman & X4 * SREFIES -
AFat XE 840,000 - - - 840,000
Roger Best, MH, JP pmE - REEHE - AFHL 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC B - ARKERD 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung fEfE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Miranda Kwok Eibes 240,000 - - - 240,000
Rosita Lee Fmi 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Lee FRE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Lin Yong, JP 2 OB - K2 120,000 - - - 120,000
Keith Lui FHK 240,000 - - - 240,000
Francis Siu miER 240,000 - - - 240,000
Peter Wan FiBE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ¢ BERRE - WEHEE AT 120,000 - - - 120,000
Edward Yuen * S 120,000 - - - 120,000
3,360,000 - - - 3,360,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEEHE 3,360,000 5,985,004 1,108,923 135,122 10,589,049
1 Resigned on 18 February 2022 ! 202292 A18 A BT
2 Retired on 30 September 2021 2 202149 AB0HEE
3 Term expired on 30 September 2021 8 1\%,@%@2021 F9A30H [Eim
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021 4 M2021F10A1 BEZ (T
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10. Premises Expenses 10. YIEXZ
2023 2022
Rates, management fees and i BREBERTEAE
air-conditioning charge 3,813,059 1,840,442
Others Hith 1,346,500 381,786
5,159,559 2,222,228

The AFRC entered into lease agreements in July 2019 and
February 2022 for its office at the Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. The non-cancellable periods of the leases
are respectively from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2023 and from
1 February 2022 to 31 August 2023, each with an option to renew
a further term of two years and all the lease payments are fixed. The
February 2022 lease is for additional space to meet operational need.
The amortisation of right-of-use assets is included in the depreciation
and amortisation expenses in note 15. In November 2022, the AFRC
entered into a lease agreement for a new office at Two Taikoo Place.
The non-cancellable period of the lease is from 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2027, with an option to renew a further term of three years.

S REEREBEFANERI18IHAFF
DR AEDBIR2019F7 A 202292 A
RV EE W - TR EEEMHEERES RA
20195981 H £202348 A31H 20224
2F1HZE2023F8A31H » SHLAARZE
HMF - MBHENFEBEE MR - 2022
F2AMMEHARERH AR N mE L&
RE o (THEEEMBHETATENMES
FRBEER - 2022118 @ BERAS
BBt A E ST E AR o T AIREE
FAHA2023F4 818 E2027F3A31H » 7]
BIBER=F -

11. Corporate Communications Expenses 1. BB ER
2023 2022
Promotion and public education HERAEHE 4,252,715 109,700
Events V) 21,583 116,135
Publications H AR T 345,145 606,778
Others HAith 1,464 8,700
4,620,907 841,313
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13.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B EES
Other Operating Expenses 12. i E X N
2023 2022
Information and systems services EESES o 6,745,074 1,751,989
Printing, stationery and other expenses ITED « XA RHEMESY 1,669,739 1,176,019
Professional liability insurance BEEHTRR 666,816 27,337
Office equipment and furniture expensed P A =R MR EFIX 18,237 4,251
9,099,866 2,959,596
In accordance with section 19 of the AFRCO, the financial statements of *EE<@§J£&E\M%I§$&%“%W>?? ofk - %\Eﬁ
the AFRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this %mﬁj%*&% mETEERAREL  EF
service. WEWEUET RSB -
Taxation 13. BB

Pursuant to section 16 of the AFRCO, the AFRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

RIBCEA LI BERBIEH) F1665 - 28
R mBARE (RBEER) (F1128)

o
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y3 ~ BRERB[M

Office
furniture Other office Leasehold
and fixtures Computers equipment improvements Total
MWAZE Hith HE
REREE Bl WAERE MEHRE b
Cost A
At 1 April 2021 202154 711 2,393,401 4,544,401 1,060,471 7,778,697 15,776,970
Additions BA 1,875,000 191,097 71,000 602,112 2,739,209
At 31 March 2022 2022563 A31H 4,268,401 4,735,498 1,131,471 8,380,809 18,516,179
At 1 April 2022 202254 A1H 4,268,401 4,735,498 1,131,471 8,380,809 18,516,179
Additions BA 774,961 1,841,654 578,298 965,823 4,160,736
At 31 March 2023 2023538317 5,043,362 6,577,152 1,709,769 9,346,632 22,676,915
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 April 2021 R202154 711 (330,931) (1,974,191) (221,212 (1,780,604) (4,306,938)
Charge for the year FRZH (237,900) (912,417) (156,482 (1,640,829 (2,947,628)
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H (568,831) (2,886,608) (377,694) (3,421,433 (7,254,566)
At 1 April 2022 R2022%4A1H (568,831) (2,886,608) (377,694) (3,421,433) (7,254,566)
Charge for the year FRZH (900,969) (1,131,322) (219,836) (4,108,058) (6,360,185)
At 31 March 2023 202338317 (1,469,800) (4,017,930) (597,530) (7,529,491)  (13,614,751)
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2023 202338317 3,573,562 2,559,222 1,112,239 1,817,141 9,062,164
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H 3,699,570 1,848,890 753,777 4,959,376 11,261,613
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful
life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful
lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

In February 2023, the AFRC changed its estimate of the remaining useful
life of certain furniture, which would not be relocated to the new office
in July 2023, to 5 months. This change in useful life have increased the
depreciation for the year by $442,239.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2022: nil).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

14, ¥)% - RIEREM @)

ME - R R EM IR AR 25T TE KR (E
BRnAE) 5 - R AME 5,000 /978
HRREARIH - ¥ - REREMIER
WA - BIEEEEERMSEEERET
Hh B (P HE R FETE T T T BT 4T
B RE T E AE VR (R BB ] SR A AN o

FEDRERYE - REREHAR 2 b5t
R L EE IR - UERE
RS ERAT HEY - REANTERASES
o

MARRARESE 10%F
B 3F
Hib A= 2E 7
THEYHEERE RER TR

M Tﬁﬂ%%un&%ﬁEH& PR|mER
HID TR - RMELEEHE

2023521 g RKELTEE2023F
TRWBIEFIMAETHNRANFISRERSS
HETERASEAR - FRSTHELEFRA
R E L hN442,2397T -

W% - RiBRBEV NG %‘H&Eﬁﬁ%@i@@iﬂﬁ%
BETREERBLENDEFR LR - &

I ERZEEEENTAMNGRIBR(RE
ERBEEMSIRFEWE) MRESRE
R ZRET) Nz EER IR
ABERSE AL o

REEBH e BHERT HBEEMTR
,,,,, FRYE  REXSVEELERE B
TR BEBLAEOTBEEELD LR
Do MARFEEME - REWRTMRER
K (20224F « ) o
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15. Leases

The leases for the AFRC office in Hopewell Centre (note 10) are
recognised as right-of-use assets with corresponding liabilities
recognised at the date at which the leased asset was available for use
by the AFRC. The leases of the new office at Two Taikoo Place will not
be accounted for since the commencement date of lease is on 1 April
2028.

The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the AFRC’s incremental borrowing
rate at the commencement date. Lease payments are allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income over the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

At the commencement date of the September 2019 lease, the AFRC
assessed that it was reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend the lease by two years at the end of the non-cancellable
period of the lease and the lease term was determined to be 6 years.
In February 2022, the AFRC considered its options for extending
its office premises to accommodate an anticipated increase in staff
numbers over the coming years. In light of this, the AFRC assessed
that it was no longer reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend
the lease, revised the lease term to 4 years, remeasured the lease
liability and made a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset. The incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease was
4.625% at the commencement date and 4.5% at the remeasurement
date (1 February 2022). The effect of the remeasurement of the
remaining lease liability was to reduce the liability by $15,983,804,
with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset. The cost of
reinstatement of the leased premises at the end of the lease term was
also capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset (note 22).

At the commencement date of the February 2022 lease, the AFRC
assessed that it was not reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend the lease by two years at the end of the non-cancellable period
of the lease and the lease term was determined to be 19 months. The
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease at the commencement
date was 4.5%.
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At 31 March 2023

Net book value
At 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

120233831 H

BREFE
12023F3531H

720223 A31H

U ES
15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)

Buildings
Right-of-use assets FAEEE BT
Cost %N
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H1H 49,416,658
Additions A 11,025,410
Adjustment upon reassessment of lease liability EHTEHEBERAR (15,983,804)
At 31 March 2022 1202293 A31H 44,458,264
At 1 April 2022 20224451 A 44,458,264
Additions A -
At 31 March 2023 20233831 H 44,458,264
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H (13,040,498)
Charge for the year FRZH (9,448,088)
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H (22,488,586)
At 1 April 2022 202244 81 H (22,488,586)
Charge for the year FAZH (15,508,008)

(37,996,594)

6,461,670

21,969,678
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B iRk
15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)
2023 2022
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current B 7,046,290 15,719,820
Non-current ERE - 7,046,290
7,046,290 22,766,110
2023 2022
Maturity profile of lease liabilities HEEBEGEWNARMBRESRE)
(contractual undiscounted cash flows):  FYRIHAART :
— Within 12 months —12{8 A K 7,098,050 16,363,058
— After 12 months but within 24 months —121E8 A1 BB iBE241E A - 7,098,050
7,098,050 23,461,108
Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of PHEHBAD S ATHERBHRIEIRR
the lease liabilities.
2023 2022
Interest on lease liabilities HEESERNE (643,238) (1,395,226)
Expense relating to leases of HEREEEENERHAX
low-value assets - (2,000)
100 AFRC Annual Report 2022-23
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15. Leases (continued)

Changes in the lease liabilities and the reconciliation of the liabilities

arising from financing activities:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

15. HE (@)
HEEBEEYRELEMAGHNAEY
BR :

Lease liabilities

HeEas

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H1H 35,969,717
Non-cash changes: JEIR 4 &

Increase in lease liability relating to new lease BRAFHENHERGEIEN 11,025,410

Adjustment upon reassessment of lease liability EFTEHERER AR (15,983,804)

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFNE 1,395,226
Financing cash flows: RMERESRE

Lease payments MENR (9,640,439)
At 31 March 2022 7202293 A31H 22,766,110
At 1 April 2022 720224418 22,766,110
Non-cash changes: IS )

Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 643,238
Financing cash flows: MERERE

Lease payments MERR (16,363,058)
At 31 March 2023 72023F3831H 7,046,290
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16. Intangible Asset

16. B E&E

Computer
software
BB
Cost AR
At 1 April 2021 20214818 980,000
Additions A -
At 31 March 2022 1202293 A31H 980,000
At 1 April 2022 202294 H1H 980,000
Additions A -
At 31 March 2023 72023%F3H31H 980,000
Accumulated amortisation LS £
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H (228,667)
Charge for the year FRZH (196,000)
At 31 March 2022 202243 H31H (424,667)
At 1 April 2022 202284 A1H (424,667)
Charge for the year FAZH (196,000)
At 31 March 2023 120233531 H (620,667)
Net book value BREFEE
At 31 March 2023 12023F3531H 359,333
At 31 March 2022 7R2022F3A31H 555,333

This represents the development cost of a case management system,

which was available for use from February 2020.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of the case management system over its
estimated useful life of 5 years after considering its estimated residual
value. Amortisation commences when the case management system is

available for use.
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16.

17.

Intangible Asset (continued)
Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of intangible asset may be impaired or a previously
recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased.
Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been recognised
(2022: nil).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

I\\\ é? ( \
kﬁ A R R R M A E
TR RIEHERBE -

PR|MER

REEBH €M BHERT LB EMTR

FEREREEBRLBERE  SUBERERD
m@ax% STABEEREARD o &K
FEFEHE  KBEERTAREEREX (2022
FE) o

Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments 17. %< ~ ERERR N FB(IRIE
2023 2022
Deposits e 17,539,628 5,337,417
Accounts receivable R BR TR 11,018,922 17,904,232
Interest receivable JEUF B, 1,056,172 224,318
Prepayments TESIE
— Medical and life insurance — B &/\%%Eﬁ 388,653 346,332
— Staff benefits —BTEF 1,040 47,276
— Implementation services fees and licence — B AR & A M0 &
fees 4,269,665 990,226
- Others —Efth 3,250,652 1,708,729
37,524,732 26,553,530
The accounts receivable relates to transaction levy, PIE levy, PIE Auditor JEWIRF R SFHE - ARFEEEHE

levy and government subsidy. AFRC does not provide an ageing
analysis of accounts receivable as the balance as at 31 March 2023 is
expected to receive in a short period of time.

Deposits as at 31 March 2023 mainly represent refundable rental
deposit for AFRC’s existing and new offices, please set note 10 for
details.

Prepayments of implementation services fees and licence fees as at
31 March 2023 mainly represent the implementation cost for AFRC’s
Registration and Licence System and it is recognised as operating
expenses on straight-line basis.

@%a’*uf‘?&ﬁ‘éﬂT?%(Eﬂi@ﬁ%&ﬂzﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁFé«é o
BN E20234E3 31 BBt a0 S BR &
B Hey R ERERERKRERNERS
#r e

MR2023F3A31BNEEETE AR W%H?r
BRERFHAETHAREASES (R
10) °

H ZE2023F3 431 HIEN M E MRS & AT
AETEECYRAMMEERFHERK
N RELIEREEELSL -
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18. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over
Three Months

Time deposits with original maturities over three months carried a fixed
interest rate of 0.9% (2022: 0.025% to 0.81%) per annum. The balances
outstanding at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 had maturities less
than 12 months from the reporting date.

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

18. REIBAZN=EANEHE
T
A
REHAZHR=EANTEGER  RETEF
FIER0.9%5T B (20224F : 0.025%Z=0.81%) °
R20235E3 431 H K20224E3 A31 BT
e B ER12fE A AR -

19. RERBEEEEY

2023 2022

Cash on hand FHERS 11,023 2,898

Current accounts =R 1,686,444 2,298,739

Savings account BTN 48,954,867 9,826,984
Time deposits with original maturities [RE|EAE T iR1m =18 A 895E 47

within three months EEN 207,790,000 44,000,000

258,442,334 56,128,621

The effective interest rates on the bank balances and the short-term

time deposits at 31 March 2023 were between 3.00% and 4.51% (2022:
0.01% to 0.55%) per annum.

20. Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other

R2023F3A31H - IRTT4EE NG HIE HiTF
AT BB FEFEE3.00%24.51% (2022
£ :0.01%%0.55%) °

20. BAER - ESTEAKREME

Liabilities &
2023 2022
Accounts payable and accruals (financial) JEREERNEER (SREAR) 9,812,284 9,246,839
Accounts payable and accruals JER R R IERTE A
(non-financial) GEemBa®E) 195,785 -
Other liabilities Hih g g 1,292 1,276
10,009,361 9,248,115

Other liabilities represent the application fee income received in advance

for the recognition of overseas auditors of PIE under the New Regime.
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U ES
Deferred Income 21, IEFEURA
2023 2022
At 1 April 2022/1 April 2021 202247518,
20214718 249,779,865 290,909,511
PIE levy income for 2023/2022 2028,/ 2022 F NRFHEEBHE
L ON 30,857,635 31,745,486
PIE auditor levy income for 2023/2022 2023 ,20224F N B F| 55 B RE A% K
FEEE-ON 26,787,745 3,616,902
Recognised as grant income in the year ERAFRNEBA (37,073,329) (67,663,613)
Recognised as PIE levy income in the year  #RAF AR
BEREEBEKRA (31,646,061) (7,924,196)
Recognised as PIE auditor levy income BRABFANRNTRH
in the year FERREAEERA (9,409,613) (904,225)
At 31 March 2023/31 March 2022 M2023%3/318,
202243 A31H 229,296,242 249,779,865
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised i : fhaHER —FWHERARA
as income within one year HE = (159,763,673) (89,095,967)
Amount classified under non-current NEERERBEESE
liabilities 69,532,569 160,683,898
2023 2022
Representing: (e
Current bipE2)| 159,763,673 89,095,967
Non-current ERH 69,532,569 160,683,898
229,296,242 249,779,865
Provision for Reinstatement Cost 22, BIR TR A E1E
In accordance with the lease agreement of 24th Floor, Hopewell Centre, BEAMDOMERERS @ BARH
the AFRC is required to restore the office premises to the original BT ARSI AT ERERANARN - WE
condition at the end of the lease term. A provision has been recognised MEMFZHIELEE - BEXNACSIEAMR
for the estimated expenditure. The cost has been capitalised as part of BAFEAREERAN —HHBRER » WH
the cost of the related right-of-use asset which is depreciated over the TEANEHERITE (15E15) ©
lease term (note 15).
Funds 23. 5%

General fund represents the operating surplus of the AFRC’s recurrent
funding.

—HESDEEYBERIEESNEEE
£5 o
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24. Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

24. €T A
ZHEemIT AMERSBELT -

follows:
2023 2022
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost: R SHR AR IBR
Deposits and interest receivable e R EWF B 18,595,800 5,561,735
Time deposits with original maturities REIEIE Z R =B A&
over three months TE TR 12,500,000 225,250,000
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 258,442,334 56,128,621
289,538,134 286,940,356
Financial liabilities A=
At amortised cost: R SHR AR IBR
Accounts payable and accruals (financial) JENEEZNETER (SRERE) 9,812,284 9,246,839
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current — e 7,046,290 15,719,820
— Non-current —3ERH - 7,046,290
16,858,574 32,012,949

The carrying amounts of the AFRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the AFRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for lease liabilities as stated in note 15. No transaction costs
have been incurred.
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-going
assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. The AFRC assesses whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition. Each financial asset is assessed
on an individual basis and the AFRC takes into account both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

No provision for impairment loss for the financial assets was made at
31 March 2023 as the financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the expected credit losses of these financial assets was
minimal.

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the AFRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.
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25. Financial Risks

(@

(b)

Credit risk
The AFRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits and interest
receivable, time deposits and other bank balances.

The Board approved an investment policy which, subject to other limits,
only allows the AFRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong
Kong having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited with
banks that are rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. The policy also
limits the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed, and specifies the minimum number of banks to be
placed at any time in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Board. As a
result, the AFRC is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
the AFRC has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal
and considers that no loss allowance is required.

Liquidity risk

The AFRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low
level of liquidity risk. The AFRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and
cash equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liabilities
were due to be repaid within three months (2022: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 15.

AFRC Annual Report 2022-23

I* e85 20202355

25. & EhE

(@

(b)

=ARR
SV RMEAENERRREES MRE K E
WIS, TEERTF A R B BRI TAE£4 ©

REZEZRCEBNKERK 2V REN
EFAEMRHRET  REEEFERE
BRBRITRUER - 2FEFRNER
BREATP-1 RS EREL BT AA-1 K
RIT - BABRKIRE T S8FERITNFR L
PRANE BAF R TR - Y AR TE (R AT
REABRITHREEEE  AMEEEEEHREA

B -

SVREBNERFRES  BRTEKRE
BK - YEBRARAMBEREEEBERES
BEMEAREZRREIRS - ERN Lk
i @M RABERNERARE - MEIRLE
REIIND R EERESERRITEAEN S
=ERREE

BEHMEREERNTARERTE VR
AERFEBEREEBHRMT AN YRRES
AHEERRHE o

TREVE SRS

SHRMNASKRATR - BLRE)E R
BR - eMREFSAEKENRSERASE
B WiEBTHEERTBINERES
EE® BRHESBEEMIMIAIBESRHEER
| AERE =@ A R (20224F « =@ F) B
B - B ES &N HMM R E158

==

hy



25.

()

26.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

Financial Risks (continued) 25. L RbE S (&)
Market risk (c) MmZEk
Currency risk R
The AFRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong SV RESWARIEHAEET MAES
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated in RMEEREMEBEHANETAEN - AtE
Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the AFRC is not exposed to any currency B B AR EE R
risk.
Interest rate risk FIZm f
The AFRC'’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in SHRNENEBEEETE AETE XA TEE
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The AFRC is subject to interest Fak - EmBEREREE - SHBBEEEF =
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having b - @ REREEE TRBEGERNER
several short term deposits. The AFRC’s exposure to interest rate risk ZREk - 2 REEROFERRER - Fit
is limited and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been WARE I E R EITRRE DT o
prepared.
Capital Commitments 26. EAREYE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2023 not provided for in M2023F3A31 A + AR NIE LB
the financial statements were as follows: BRREEARENT
2023 2022

Contracted for SHES 20,850,000 2,084,000
Authorised but not contracted for EEREERETL - 900,000

20,850,000 2,984,000
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Honorary Advisory Panel

BB

The function of the Honorary Advisers is to advise the AFRC, including its committees and staff, with respect to any matter referred
to the Honorary Advisers by the AFRC. The panel comprises highly respected individuals with a wide spectrum of professional
expertise who provide their advice and contributions to the AFRC at the committee level. By leveraging their wealth of experience,
the AFRC has been able to discharge our statutory duties as an effective independent regulator of the accounting profession.

FEEHBEREMNRSVRENNEE AR (BRAZEGMED) RHUER - REEREABERRZEENBZNLEE

EAERK o BRI = AR

From: 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

EEAER : 2019-10-01
EEFJE W - 2023-09-30

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires

on 2023-09-30
TAIIE R+ 2019-10-01
LA 7 2023-09-30

5 SMBETUARMETRMERBEGTERNB L EERBIETERAE

Ms Melissa Brown

Ms Brown is a Partner at Daobridge Capital, a private investment advisory firm, where she
focuses on opportunities linked to sustainable investments in Asian markets. She also works
with organizations focused on energy transition analytics and the Asian Corporate Governance
Association. She is a member of the SFC Takeovers Panel and the HKEX Listing Review
Committee. She has previously served as a member of the HKEX Listing Committee, as a
government-appointed lay council member of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs, and on the UN PRI
Advisory Council.

Melissa BrownZ

Brown#Z 2 — R AR & i3 A FlDaobridge Capital & B A + BT R B 35N 35 Al #4518 S48
RS - ihiE BB TRERER OMAAENTN AR E LA EEE - HREESUWEREH
ZEENBEABRGMEIMBEZZEGNE - MU ETAERSZALTLZEGHKE AEGHIIA
SRFEGHIEESZEIIKEUNEBASBPREEMZEEKE -

Dr Eva Chan

Dr Chan has more than 25 years of financial and management experience and has been senior
executives of various listed companies in Hong Kong. She is the Head of Investor Relations of C C
Land Holdings Limited. Dr Chan is an independent Non-Executive Director of Capital Environment
Holdings Limited and Xtep International Holdings Limited and an Adjunct Professor in the School of
Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr Chan is the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Investor Relations Association. She obtained a
DBA degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

RaEEL

RELHERBSFNMBENERLS  BEEEEZRLTARNGRERAR BATRE
WERBRARNKREEBELIE - RELREARBERARAR IS FIERERARARNE
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Ms Ivy Cheung

Ms Cheung is the Managing Partner and Head of Audit with KPMG, Hong Kong. She has over 30
years of experience in auditing and advising companies listed on Hong Kong and overseas stock
exchanges. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). She was the President of the HKICPA in 2016. She currently serves as member of
various public service committees, including the Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and
Conditions of Service, the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, the Consumer Council
Audit Committee and the Transport Advisory Committee. She is also a board member of the Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, Hong Kong Genome Institute and the Insurance
Authority.

REWLZ L

REIBRIEFHEEREEABARETIREIEEGRA  REDE - PERRIESINFERE
B LM ARRMESRE T EHAES0FLR - wERBGTMATNEREE - TN2016F
BEEZgek MBEAREZEAKRBZESEZE  BRABEFEMRBEHEBEES -
RAVERAERBERER HEEZERETZRESRRBHEAZES - RUINRBBHBEE
BARRAR  HBEEFRATOLRRBREEERNEERNKE -

Dr Christine Chow

Dr Chow is the Managing Director and the Global Head of Active Ownership at Credit Suisse Asset
Management. She has 26 years of experience in investment management, research & consulting,
with a focus on technology and sustainability. She is a Board Member of the International Corporate
Governance Network (ICGN), an organisation led by investors responsible for assets under
management in excess of $US70 trillion from over 39 countries and territories. Prior to joining Credit
Suisse, she was the Global Head of Stewardship at HSBC Asset Management and a board member
of HSBC Asset Management (UK) Limited. She previously worked at Federated Hermes, Hewitt
Associates and Schroders.

AEE L
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From 2021-02-10

Current appointment expires
on 2025-02-09

AR : 2021-02-10
EARE i + 2025-02-09

From 2020-10-06

Current appointment expires
on 2024-10-04

R R - 2020-10-06
EHIE W - 2024-10-04

Mr Fox Chu

Mr Chu is a Partner at McKinsey & Company in Hong Kong, serving clients across consumer,
logistics and infrastructure sectors. He has advised clients on topics across policy reform, growth
strategy, M&A, operations turnaround and new business building in Greater China, Southeast Asia,
Sub-continents and the Middle East.

REERE

RELERBEEHBEERARNEGBA  REWVEE - MRNERRIGBELNEP - RELGHAHE
& - RED - RAREMPRIGRABERNE - RRERE - 0  BLEUMHAEBEREIERAT
PRI AIRTS o

Ms Grace Hui

Ms Hui has over 20 years of banking and finance experience. From 2013 to early 2022, she
was with Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX) during which she served as Chief
Operating Officer of its Listing Division until early 2020 when she initiated and established HKEX's
green and sustainable finance department and HKEX’s STAGE. Prior to HKEX, she was with UBS in
various roles including Global Chief Operating Officer of its Legal & Compliance Department.

Ms. Hui is currently an independent non-executive director of a company listed on HKEX. She is
an adjunct professor in the Division of Environment and Sustainability at The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, a member of the Sustainability Committee of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of both the Finance Management Committee
and the Global Centre for ESG Education and Research Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Management Association. She is also a qualified lawyer in Hong Kong and in England and Wales.

Bt ko=

AT HEARBIE0FRRITREMITELR - 2013F 220226 ) » HLTBREBZH REEF
BRAR (BEZSMEE LT AR EERE  YHE2020FNERIKIAERAIFERRS
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Ms Ashley Khoo

Ms Khoo, CFA, is an asset management and investment banking professional with comprehensive
experience in portfolio management, fundamental/quantitative/pre-deal research covering Asian and
China markets, multi-asset class investment, and financial advisory. She is an Executive Director
of the CFA Society Hong Kong, and served as a member of the Investor and Financial Education
Council’s Financial Education Coordination Committee from 2021 to 2022, a member of the CFA
Institute’s Presidents Council Governance Committee from 2019 to 2020, and the President of the
CFA Society Hong Kong from 2016 to 2018.

27 ko

EZTAEETERRERTEEAL  EBEEFEROMMBSRTESERATE K(2016-
2018) HEENMEHHEZECHVHEREZEEME(2021-2022) - CFARE 2 EkPresidents
Council&’/aZ& 8 €% §(2019-2020) °

Mr Anthony Leung

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of Ernst & Young member firms for Hong Kong and Macau,
and the Greater China Deputy Assurance Leader of EY Greater China. He is a former member of
the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2009 and completed
the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served on the Professional Conduct Committee of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Leung is a member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

RPREE

REEBRFELKBEEMRFIBAMBEIEEBA  ARZOKKPERETRGIILE - EEER
BAaXGMARAR TTES8%E8 (E2009F2015F E M NFEH) « i EEREGAL
GHETRZESZE - REARBAESHNAGGEMNEANTRHHSMAEEE -

Ms Janet Li

Ms Li, CFA, MAOF, is a Partner and the Wealth Business Leader, Asia at Mercer. She oversees and is
responsible for Mercer’s Wealth (Investment and Retirement) Business in Asia. In her role, she leads
and drives strategic growth to the business as well as its operations and implementations. She is
currently serving as member of the Human Capital Committee of the Financial Services Development
Council (FSDC) and member of the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee.

=FRu+
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From 2021-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

ERIE R - 2021-10-01
EE & - 2023-09-30

From 2019-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

EAE R - 2019-10-01
EE & - 2023-09-30

Mr William Mak

Mr Mak was a partner of PwC Hong Kong. He is also a past Chairman of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in providing
assurance and advisory services in Hong Kong and Mainland China with capital market related
activities.

BEYREE

BFRALCHBBBRLFBICGERTMEBMETARA  TREARFFERGHNLE (FED
B)AER - BB BA= T FETERAMREHEA KRBT FARTGNER  TRR/EREHRE
A EH AR

Mr Francis Mok

Mr Mok is currently the Principal Consultant of Francis Mok Consulting, helping clients to establish
the best human capital practices. He worked with a wide range of corporations and companies,
transforming HR practices and building leadership pipelines for business sustainability. He is a Past
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources Management (HKIHRM), and a Past
President of the Asia Pacific Federation of Human Resource Management (APFHRM).
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Current appointment expires
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Mr Keith Pogson

Mr Pogson is the Senior Partner, Financial Services, Asia Pacific at Ernst & Young (EY), the Founder
and former Regional Managing Partner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Practice of EY. He is the
Co-Chair and EY representative on the Bank Working Group of the Global Public Policy Committee
of the international accounting firms. He is the Chairman since 2022 of the Listing Committee of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Deputy Chairman during 2020-22 and a member since
2016. He is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and continues to be a member of the Governance Committee and was previously the Chairs of
the Regulatory Oversight Board, the Audit Committee, the Ethical Standard Setting Committee,
the Assurance Standards Setting Committees and the Professional Conduct Committees of the
HKICPA. Mr Pogson is a Panel member of the Resolution Compensation Tribunal of the Financial
Services and the Treasury of the Government of Hong Kong SAR since 2015.

Mr Pogson is a Fellow and Practicing Member of the HKICPA, a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute as
well as Member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.
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BIEERTKEBMBEEABRSRABA  URTKERSBBEELEB ARG ERES
BA - RS EEMERAEBRREESRIT LIEEMNE A EE ML KNAE - B2022F
B tETESHARIMEMEESEE © H2016F 8 K2020E 2022F 5 BIMEEAK B K&+
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AR EERGBRBEELHEREE -

Prof Zabihollah Rezaee

Prof Rezaee is the Thompson-Hill Chair of Excellence and Professor of Accountancy at the
University of Memphis and has served a two-year term on the Standing Advisory Group of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). He holds ten certifications including Certified
Public Accountant (CPA). He is currently the editor of the Journal of Forensic Accounting Research
(JFAR). Professor Rezaee has published over 250 articles and made more than 280 presentations,
written 14 books, and served as an expert witness. Prof Rezaee’s teaching, research and service
interests are in financial reporting, auditing, corporate governance, business sustainability, forensic
accounting and organizational ethics.

Zabihollah Rezaee#(#%

Rezaee# 1% 2 £ SEHT K ZThompson-Hill 1 58 BRI M & 5T REUR - M BEER QB E5TE
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=HATFEaES) (Journal of Forensic Accounting Research)A)4R4E - Rezaee IR 3R T 2508 X &
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(ERAIE R - 2024-02-04

From 2018-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

ERIER - 2018-12-11
EE = - 2023-09-30

Mr Paul Smith

Mr Smith is an independent corporate director. He served as President and CEO of CFA Institute
from January 2015 to September 2019. Previously he owned and ran Asia Alternative Asset
Partners, a Hong Kong Hedge Fund Group. He first came to Hong Kong in 1996 to run the Bank
of Bermuda'’s securities servicing business and on sale to HSBC acted as Global Head of HSBC'’s
alternative funds servicing business. From 1984 to 1995 he worked for Ermitage International as
a European fund manager spending the last seven years as CEO. He is a Fellow of the Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a Chartered Financial Analyst and holds a Master of Arts degree
from Oxford University.

Paul Smith%t &£

Smithfe £ =B ARIEFE » M 2015F1 B E2019F9 A BT/ oI E S T ERITHAE
oo AT A REE T BT E S £ B Asia Alternative Asset Partners ° th 219964 & X 5K E
S KEBRRIRTNEFRGER - WHETELET  MEETDELRTSEECREEY
2B E A ° #£1984F 519954 » fth#EErmitage InternationalZ I BUME S &I - IMTHIRR%
TERBEETREE - M ERREFEBST SN E TSRO E - WiEEFEAR
KSR 24T -

Mr David Stannard
Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was an Executive Director in charge of
the Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (1999-2001), a member of
the Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (2003-2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform (2003-2010).

David Stannard 5t 4

EREERTHB B ATIER - R1999F Z2001 FHEESF L EEREREZE S b ¥
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Mr Eric Tong

Mr Tong is an Audit & Assurance Partner of Deloitte China’s Financial Services Industry Group. He
brings with him over 35 years of experience in auditing and advising international and local banks
and securities companies. He is the Chairman for Deloitte INED Club and was the leader of the
Financial Services Industry for Southern China. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He was the HKICPA President in 2018 and has chaired various committees of the HKICPA
including the Governance Committee, Audit and Assurance Standards Committee, Securities
Regulatory Advisory Panel and Branding and Communication Advisory Panel. Mr Tong received the
HKSAR Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service in July 2018. He was a member of
the Policy Research Committee of the Financial Services Development Council between 2017 and
2019.
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RIS H AR BBISFLR  BEEYREIENTESHEER  TERIPHERR KSR
RISEFTEEA - thRBBSHARAERARFRBERIFHSHAAGEREE - N2018F
HESESHAEER  TEHETASZEAZESER BIEEAREET  BifWRFELE
B®  B5EHETLE LM REBEER/ M - EAEN2018F7 AMBETHRE AR R
ik - 2017 F E22019F AR B RER BECRIATR/ NMEKE -

Mr Richard Tsang

Mr Tsang is the founder and Chairman of Strategic Public Relations Group. His major public-service
roles include Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; President of Enterprise
Asia; Member of the Steering Committee on Prevention and Control of Non-Communicable
Diseases; Member of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene; Member of
Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee; Office of the Communications
Authority; Trustee of Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong; Council Member of UNICEF
Hong Kong; and Member of Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, among others.
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From 2021-04-15

Current appointment expires
on 2025-04-14

R R - 2021-04-15
EEfER - 2025-04-14

Ms Nancy Sau Ling Tse, JP

Ms Tse is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of Wharf (Holdings) Limited (WHL); Link
Asset Management Limited (Manager of the Link Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)), DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited as well as HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited (HPFT). She is
also the Chairperson of the Board of HPFT. She is the former Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Finance and Information Technology Services) of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority. She is a
member of the Board of Governors of the Prince Philip Dental Hospital and is an Adjunct Professor
of the Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She is the deputy chair of the Professional Accountants in Business Advisory Group and
a member of the Public Policy and Regulation Advisory Group of the International Federation of
Accountants. She is a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

WERLL  AFET

MLLTRENERREERAT  AREUEREETES ERIRREULEREEAESINGEG
BAN)RERRT(BR)BRARNELIFATES - S ELRIEEXFEAEE) ERIFN
BYFATES  UREZAFNEZRIF - XL ELEIRRERERNEFEYHE LAk B
BREMBERE) - wRIFERTHERENERBKE  TARBFEPTXABEFEAHBERE
EBFERNTERE - $IX L ERERGNATRSEE T FEMBER S A & A _ERMA
Bt E - IR EE RS MARERSENAREETEGAREE -

Mr Stephen Weatherseed

Mr Weatherseed is a Senior Director of Mazars and was the Managing Partner from 2012 to
2020. He is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an Independent Board
Member of the English Schools Foundation and the Honorary Treasurer for the Ladies’ Recreation
Club. He was previously the Deputy Chairman of the Professional Conduct Committee and a
member of the Examinations Board and of the Continuing Professional Education Committee of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
RSM Hong Kong in 1988 and was made partner in 1991. He is currently the Managing Partner and
the Head of Audit and Assurance Services of RSM Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Global
Quality Committee of RSM Global which oversees the audit quality of all RSM member firms over
the world.

EREXEE
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EREHKEBNETEE -

Mr Jackson Woo

Mr Woo is a solicitor in private practice with 30 years of experience and also has 20 years of
experience in investment banking. He specializes in commercial and corporate matters involving
listed companies, and is currently serving as an independent non-executive director of two
companies listed in Hong Kong.

Mr Woo is a Practising Solicitor Member on the panel of the Solicitors’ Disciplinary Tribunal and a
Panel Member of the Resolution Compensation Tribunal under the Financial Institutions (Resolution)
Ordinance (Cap. 628) of Hong Kong. In addition, he is a member of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel
and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, and is
also a member of the Listing Review Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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From 2018-03-01

Current appointment expires
on 2024-02-29

EEIE R - 2018-03-01
(ERAIE R - 2024-02-29

From 2019-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

AR - 2019-12-11
EEE W - 2023-09-30

Mr Elton Yeung

Mr Yeung is the Vice Chairman of PricewaterhouseCoopers China, leading One Firm Services
including digital transformation advisory services, ESG and Sustainability solutions, new innovative
digital product businesses as well as digitisation and data strategy.

Mr Yeung has extensive audit and business advisory professional experiences, and has led
numerous complex restructuring and listing engagements. He has an in-depth understanding of the
relevant regulatory environment and financial reporting requirements for listed companies.

BESEE
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BELRBELFETNBEXANANERRERR  CEFLESFTHHAALEEMRELEN
Bein HlENM EmEREE - Y EHARMAREERENABERZRKERANTHE -

Prof Wayne Yu
Prof Yu is a professor at the City University of Hong Kong. His teaching and research areas include
corporate governance, corporate finance, and capital markets. In addition, he has been serving as
a non-executive and independent director for a number of listed companies. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst.
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Financial Reporting Review Panel WK ERRNEEE
Panel Conveners ZEEEEA
Mr lan Farrar FRELE
Mr Mark Johnson HEFLE
Dr PM Kam, BBS' HigX L AERFEE
Mr Carmelo Lee, JP! BRTRE - KFMLT
Mr Paul Shieh, SC BRI - BIRANERD
Mr Tang Kwai Chang HEREE
Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP PomEEL L WEFIEE - KP4t
Mr Wong Kim Man HBIX KL
Mrs Betty Yuen, JP P ezt » KFat
Members HE
Mr Hamilton Cheng ERIRER S
Ms Caroline Chiu HMERELZLT
Ms Bella Chhoa BEMLL
Mr Louis Chow Azt
Ms Irene Chu KRIEFEL L
Mr Benny Chung Eniak A
Ms Candy Fong = S= g
Prof Gu Zhaoyang BFAIS
Prof Hung Ming Yi AR R
Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans' ReHiE
Mr Byron Khoo e A
Ms Bernardine Lam WEBZ T
Mr Kenneth Lau 2B ST
Mr Leo Lee FEREE
Mr Ernest Lee TEREE
Mr Gilbert Lee FXEESE
Ms Alva Lee Hzt
Mr Jacob Lee Chi Hin? FEE A2
Mr Lee Yin-toa' FEFHAE
Mr Benjamin Lo B ERE
Mr Lo Nim-chi ‘mRFESEE
Mr Wiliam Lo EEIAKSE
Ms Fanny Lung BEESa L
Prof Mo Lai Lan FEBHX
Mr Christopher Morley BB
Mr Kenneth Morrison’ XAB(E A
Prof James Arvid Ohlson James Arvid OhlsonZi%
Mr Simon Ng REBEE
Mr Simon John Riley HIHE ST A&
Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario EESL A
Ms Shelley So BRYT 20
Mr Gary Stevenson Gary Stevensonft 4
Mr Eric Tang skt
Mr Jim Tang Lailpdi e
Prof Wang Xin R
Mr Jason Yau Tsz Shun? = 5 A2
1. Retired on 15 July 2022 1. R20224E7 515 AR
2. Appointed on 16 July 2022 2. Ro020F7H16AEZ(T
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Process Review Panel

Chairperson
Ms Edith Shih

Members

Mr Patrick Law Fu-yuen

Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing, BBS, JP
Mr Frederick Tsang Sui-cheong

Mr Tse Kam Keung®

Professor Anna Wong Wai-kwan

Mr Yu Chung-leung

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (ex-officio)

Ms Denise Lam (representative of the Secretary for Justice) (ex-officio)

3. Retired on 31 December 2022

Audit Investigation Board

Chairman
Mr Marek Grabowski (ex-officio)

Members
Ms Wincey Lam
Mr Peter Nip
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Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council
B RUMBERS

The independent regulator of the accounting profession

B EENEIEERE

24th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
EBLEAER 183 AL 24 18

Tel E&E 1 (852) 2810 6321 Fax &8 :(852) 2810 6320
Email E# : general@afrc.org.hk Website 484 : www.afrc.org.hk
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